
 

 

 
Agenda for Housing Review Board 
Thursday, 24th January, 2019, 2.30 pm 
 
Members of Housing Review Board 
Councillors: Stott (Chairman), P Sullivan (Vice-Chairman), 
M Berridge, J Bingham, C Drew, P Gore, C Summers, 
A Williams, M Armstrong, J O'Leary, H Parr and B Taylor  

 
Venue: Council Chamber, Exmouth Town Hall, Exmouth EX8 
1AW 

 
Contact: Alethea Thompson; 

01395 517653; email athompson@eastdevon.gov.uk 

(or group number 01395 517546) 
Tuesday, 15 January 2019 
 
 
 
1 Public speaking   

 Information on public speaking is available online 
 

2 Minutes of the previous meeting  (Pages 3 - 9) 

3 Apologies   

4 Housing Review Board forward plan   

5 Declarations of interest   

 Guidance is available online to Councillors and co-opted members on making 
declarations of interest 
 

6 Matters of urgency   

 Information on matters of urgency is available online 
 

7 Confidential/exempt item(s)   

 To agree any items to be dealt with after the public (including the press) have 
been excluded. There are no items which officers recommend should be dealt 
with in this way. 
 

8 Housing Service Plan 2019-2020  (Pages 10 - 39) 

9 Housing budget 2019-2020 and Housing Revenue Account update  (Pages 40 - 
52) 

10 Integrated Asset Management Contract update  (Pages 53 - 74) 

11 Universal Credit update  (Pages 75 - 78) 

East Devon District Council 

Blackdown House 

Border Road 

Heathpark Industrial Estate 

Honiton 

EX14 1EJ 

DX 48808 HONITON 

Tel: 01395 516551 

Fax: 01395 517507 

www.eastdevon.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack

Agenda page 1

http://new.eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/committees-and-meetings/have-your-say-at-meetings/all-other-public-meetings/
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillor-conduct/councillor-reminder-for-declaring-interests/
http://new.eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/committees-and-meetings/matters-of-urgency/


12 LGA bid January 2019  (Pages 79 - 86) 

13 Date of the next Housing Review Board meeting   

 To note the date of the next Housing Review Board meeting: 
Thursday 28 March 2019 – 2:30pm, Council Chamber, Exmouth Town Hall. 
 

 
 
 
 
Under the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014, any members of the 
public are now allowed to take photographs, film and audio record the proceedings and 
report on all public meetings (including on social media). No prior notification is needed but 
it would be helpful if you could let the democratic services team know you plan to film or 
record so that any necessary arrangements can be made to provide reasonable facilities for 
you to report on meetings. This permission does not extend to private meetings or parts of 
meetings which are not open to the public. You should take all recording and photography 
equipment with you if a public meeting moves into a session which is not open to the public.  
 
If you are recording the meeting, you are asked to act in a reasonable manner and not 
disrupt the conduct of meetings for example by using intrusive lighting, flash photography or 
asking people to repeat statements for the benefit of the recording. You may not make an 
oral commentary during the meeting. The Chairman has the power to control public 
recording and/or reporting so it does not disrupt the meeting. 
 
Members of the public exercising their right to speak during Public Question Time will be 
recorded. 
 
Decision making and equalities 
 

For a copy of this agenda in large print, please contact the Democratic 
Services Team on 01395 517546 

Agenda page 2

http://new.eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/committees-and-meetings/decision-making-and-equalities-duties/


EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Minutes of the meeting of Housing Review Board held at Council Chamber, 

Exmouth Town Hall, Exmouth on 22 November 2018 

 
Attendance list at end of document 
The meeting started at 2.30 pm and ended at 4.45 pm 
 
 
40    Public speaking  

 
There were no questions raised by members of the public. 
 

41    Chairman's welcome  

 
The Chairman welcomed tenant Pat Gore to the meeting.  Pat had attended interviews, 
along with another tenant, Cat Summers, on 14 November, for the two vacant 
tenant/leaseholder representative posts on the Board.  Subject to Board approval, both 
tenants would be formally co-opted by Full Council on 12 December 2018 and become 
members of the Housing Review Board.  

 
RECOMMENDED:  that Pat Gore and Cat Summers be co-opted on the Housing Review 
Board as tenant/leaseholder representative members. 
 

42    Minutes of the previous meeting  

 
The minutes of the Housing Review Board meeting held on 20 September 2018 were 
confirmed and signed as a true record.  
 

43    Declarations of interest  

 
Pat Gore: Personal interest - housing tenant. 
Peter Sullivan: Personal interest – housing tenant. 
Alek Williams: Personal interest – housing tenant. 
 

44    Housing Review Board forward plan  

 
The Strategic Lead, Housing, Health and Environment presented the forward plan and 
advised Members that the forward plan acted as a reminder of agenda items to come 
forward to future meetings. Members were reminded that they could add further issues to 
the next forward plan by informing either himself or the Democratic Services Officer.   

 
During the meeting the following items were added to the forward plan: 

 Draft housing service plan. 

 Draft Housing Revenue Account budget. 

 Update on the integrated asset management contract and the work taking place 
on mobilising the contract. 

 Update on the impact of Universal Credit. 
 
RESOLVED:  that the forward plan be noted and updated. 
 

45    Revision to tenancy agreement  

 
Agenda page 3

Agenda Item 2



Housing Review Board 22 November 2018 
 

The Housing Project Officer’s report updated members on progress made in the 
development of a revised tenancy agreement.  The report contained the final draft of the 
revised tenancy agreement, along with an explanation of the changes made and sought 
approval of the revised tenancy agreement. With this approval, it was planned to enter a 
seven week statutory consultation with tenants from 12 December 2018. 

 
The report also recommended that the Strategic Lead for Housing, Health and 
Environment, and the Portfolio holder be given the authority to make any minor 
amendments to the tenancy agreement following the statutory consultation. 

 
In September 2017, a project group, consisting of housing service managers and officers 
and legal representation, with Mobile Support Officer consultation, was set up to revise 
the tenancy agreement to ensure that it reflected changes in policy and legislation 
implemented since the previous revision of the agreement in 2015.  The HRB were 
notified of this in September 2017.  Tenants were also updated on progress through the 
Tenant Involvement Forum and suggested amendments were received through the 
Tenant Readers Panel. 
 
Running concurrently with the tenancy agreement revision, housing teams had been 
reviewing and updating their housing policies, making sure that the revised tenancy 
agreement would be consistent with them.  Following the updating of policies, the project 
group members were given a last chance to suggest amendments to the tenancy 
agreement. 

 
Following approval of the revised tenancy agreement a preliminary notice letter would be 
sent to all tenants, along with a document detailing the changes that had been made to 
the tenancy agreement. The statutory consultation would run for six weeks from 12 
December 2018 until 31 January 2019. 

 
Any further amendments arising from the consultation period would be incorporated into 
the tenancy agreement before the final agreement is presented to HRB on 28 March 
2019 for approval. This would then go to Cabinet and Full Council for ratification.  The 
formal Notice of Variation and tenancy agreement would then be sent to all tenants on 25 
April 2019.  The new tenancy agreement would then come into effect from 10 June 2019, 
six weeks after the Notice of Variation was issued.  
During the meeting the Vice Chairman raised a number of issues queried by the Tenant 
Involvement Forum (TIF).  The Solicitor reminded the Board that the draft tenancy 
agreement had been considered by a barrister, but suggested that officers go through 
the concerns raised by the TIF and amend the wording of the clauses where necessary. 
 
RECOMMENDED:   

1. that Cabinet approve the revised tenancy agreement, and 
2. that Cabinet agree the next steps and timescales detailed in section 2 of the 

report, 
3. that delegated authority be given to the Portfolio Holder for Sustainable 

Homes and Communities and the Strategic Lead Housing, Health and 
Environment to make minor amendments to the tenancy agreement following 
the consultation process. 

 
46    Fire safety  

 

Agenda page 4



Housing Review Board 22 November 2018 
 

The Senior Technical Officer’s (Asset Management and Compliance) report updated the 
Board on the current position in relation to fire safety in blocks of flats, and set out a 
proposed way forward. 

 
The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 set out requirements in relation to 
general fire safety precautions that landlords must adhere to. The basis of the legislation 
was centred on the completion of Fire Risk Assessments (FRA). By adopting a fire risk 
assessment approach, there was the need to look at how to prevent fire from occurring in 
the first place, by removing or reducing hazards and risks (ignition sources) and then 
looking at the precautions to ensure that people were adequately protected, if a fire were 
still to occur.  FRAs were updated every two years.  Any urgent recommendations were 
implemented urgently. Non-urgent recommendations were packaged up and tendered.  
FRAs were confined to communal areas and means of escape in accordance with the 
guidance.  FRAs were in place for all of the properties that required one. 

 
Throughout the period in which fire safety work had been carried out EDDC had 
established a very close working relationship with Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue 
Service.  They had provided an expert level of guidance and support throughout and 
were extremely satisfied with the manner in which EDDC had approached and were 
addressing fire safety, so much so that EDDC were held up as a flagship for other 
housing providers to aspire to. 

 
The emphasis on fire safety had resulted in a detailed review of the fire safety policy, 
which was carried out in 2017.  The policy: 

 gives clarity in the main statutory regulations/legislation that applied and needed 
to be followed, 

 defined the roles and responsibilities within housing, particularly in relation to 
upgrading/maintaining the buildings and managing the buildings. 

 
The Strategic Lead – Housing, Health and Environment explained that there was a 
number of options in terms of spend, depending on the degree of urgency given to the 
fire safety works.  The works highlighted in the report were essential and future FRAs 
would be done on a similar basis to that already done.  The housing accountant advised 
that in the budget fire safety works could be prioritised over the new housing 
development fund, but this would mean that it was not possible to provide so many new 
properties.  The three options for the delivery of outstanding fire safety works outlined in 
the report were: 

1. Provide the complete budget to carry out all the work in the next financial year, 
approximately £3million. 

2. Carry out the work over two financial years, approximately £1.5million per annum. 
3. Carry out the work over three financial years, approximately £1million per annum. 

It was noted that considerable resource would be required from the Property and Asset 
team to deliver the required work to prepare documentation to procure the work, 
whichever option was selected. It was therefore proposed to extend the employment of 
the Fixed Term Programmed Works Officer (Fire) beyond the initial twelve months. 
 
RECOMMENDED:   

1. that Cabinet note the progress made in relation to fire safety in blocks of flats and 
agree the priority of future works to address property issues related to fire, 

2. that members be aware of the significant budget required to bring all blocks of 
flats up to a fully compliant fire safety standard. 

3. that Cabinet approve the extension of the employment of the additional 
Programme Works Officer (Fire Safety) for a further 12 months. 

Agenda page 5



Housing Review Board 22 November 2018 
 

 
47    Renewal of Advantage South West subscription  

 
The Housing Review Board noted the report of the Senior Technical Officer (Asset 
Management and Compliance) which set out the benefits of membership of Advantage 
South West and recommended continuing membership to the organisation. 

 
Advantage SW was a limited liability partnership owned by Live West, North Devon 
Homes,  Ocean Housing Group and Yarlington Housing Group. The organisation 
was created in  2004, and its purpose was to improve homes and lives through 
collaboration and innovation.  The three parts to Advantage SW were: 

 

 New build properties; Advantage SW owned the rights to a number of house type 
designs. In 2017-18 they finalised a new range of designs to meet the current 
size aspirations of its members.  

 The Procurement Consortium, started in 2008 and improved value for money for 
its members in the products used in new build, planned and responsive 
maintenance. The procurement consortium had saved its members over £36m 
in cashable savings and RPI avoidance. 

 EnergySW; the resident energy brand provided in partnership with OVO Energy 
that was launched in November 2015. 

 
During 2017-18 the procurement consortium had 12 members who between them owned 
over 100,000 properties.  Each member paid an annual subscription that was calculated 
dependent on its size.  EDDC’s subscription for 2017-18 was £13,708, excluding VAT.  
Since 2010 EDDC had saved £740,981 and a further £521,303 of RPI avoidance through 
its membership of Advantage SW. 

 
Advantage South West had established and were delivering a programme of accredited 
Continuous Professional Development (CPD) sessions on topics relevant to members’ 
staff.  EDDC staff were in the process of enrolling onto various CPD courses.  
Membership of Advantage SW also brought benefits in terms of access to the formal 
network of members that provides valuable advice and guidance, as well as the specific 
procurement expertise that Advantage SW itself had. 

 
The report stated that membership of Advantage SW continued to be beneficial for East 
Devon District Council and that membership of the group should continue for 2019/20 at 
a cost of approximately £15,000 excluding VAT. Through the efforts of all involved, 
Advantage SW delivered: 

 sharing of information and good practice 

 access to procurement knowledge and technology 

 value for money 

 good products 

 an increasing range of multi-supplier frameworks 

 opportunities for resident involvement 

 methods to reduce fuel poverty 
 

The Board agreed that the housing service received excellent value from the subscription 
to Advantage South West. 

 
RECOMMENDED: that Cabinet approve continuing to pay the annual subscription to 
maintain the membership to Advantage South West. 
 

Agenda page 6



Housing Review Board 22 November 2018 
 

48    Housing Revenue Account update to October 2018  

 
The Housing Accountant’s report provided the Board with the current position to October 
2018 and details of the year end forecast of the draft Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
for 2018/19.  The HRA showed the main areas of anticipated income and expenditure on 
landlord activities for the year ahead.  Producing a HRA business plan had been a 
statutory requirement for Councils who manage and own their own stock for some time, 
and therefore a key document for the Board to influence. 

 
The notable items of budget variance were: 

 Lower than expected employee costs as recruitment progressed. 

 Increased forecasted expenditure on compliance related items such as works 
resulting from fire risk assessments. 

 Higher than budgeted prices for the Air Source Heat Pump programme. 
 

The report also provided the position of the HRA capital programme for both affordable 
housing and other capital items outside of the HRA.  The business plan included a 
programme of expenditure to replace properties lost through Right to Buy sales and 
ensure that Right to Buy receipts were invested and not returned to central government.  
It was noted that if Right to Buy sales declined this would have an impact on capital 
expenditure in future years. 

 
The housing accountant asked the Board for a steer about the length of time the money 
for Fire Risk Assessments and fire safety works should be spread (1 to 3 years).  It was 
suggested that all remaining property purchases (excluding the current house of multiple 
occupation) be put on hold for the remainder of the year.  The accountant agreed to bring 
budget setting scenarios back to the next Board meeting.  It was also suggested that the 
Garage Task and Finish Forum be revisited. 
 
RESOLVED:  

1. that the Board note the Housing Revenue Account update to August 2018 report. 
2. that the housing accountant present various budget setting scenarios to the next 

meeting of the Housing Review Board. 
 

49    Housing research study update: Your wellbeing your home  

 
The report of the Information and Analysis Officer provided the Board with an update on 
the first stage of a joint three year project with the University of Birmingham and 
LiveWest, exploring the relationship between housing and wellbeing and landlord 
satisfaction.  The results would support service improvement. 

 
The Chairman welcomed Laura Rychlewski, from LiveWest to the meeting.  The 
Information and Analysis Officer presented the research findings so far, which centred 
around what mattered about a home, and why.  It was noted that in comparison to the 
previous year’s STAR satisfaction survey the figures had decreased slightly.  The ‘your 
wellbeing your home’ research put the tenant at the heart, rather than EDDC as the 
landlord.  The research considered: 

 financial wellbeing – over 65 year olds and women and households with children 
were the most likely to struggle financially. 

 health and wellbeing – mental health was a high concern. 

 wellbeing and experience of home – there were general themes for what the role 
as landlord should be. 

Agenda page 7



Housing Review Board 22 November 2018 
 

 top problems reported – those on the housing register, LiveWest tenants and 
EDDC tenants. 

 reasons for wanting to move or stay in current home – the most important reason 
reported was a desire for long-term security in the home.  Other important 
reasons given were quality of life, affordability and suitability. 

 
The research demonstrated that respondents in social housing had better wellbeing than 
those on the housing register.  Having a good home mattered for overall life satisfaction.  
It showed that social housing was not the cause of lower quality of life, but there was a 
need to understand the importance of the right home for the right person.  The 
importance of emotional and physical security for a positive wellbeing that came with 
having a stable home was what mattered.   

 
The Information and Analysis Officer reported that more data would come forward over 
the course of the three year longitudinal study.  The research so far demonstrated how 
important the housing service was to the people of East Devon and how it should 
become more holistic about delivering housing services.  It was important to educate all 
people that it was the home that mattered, not the tenure, as there was still a stigma 
attached to social housing. 

 
On behalf of the Board the Chairman thanked the Information and Analysis Officer for 
her powerful and interesting presentation. 

 
RESOLVED: that the Board note the first year’s results of the ‘your wellbeing your home’ 
study. 
 

50    Home Safeguard system upgrade  

 
The Board considered a report that would be presented to Cabinet on 28 November 
seeking approval for the expenditure necessary to upgrade the Home Safeguard call 
handling system, as outlined in the business case attached to the report.  The upgrade 
was a necessity for the continuation of the Home Safeguard Service, which in addition to 
the alarm for private, sheltered and corporate customers, provided the out of hours 
service for EDDC and Teignbridge District Council, plus lone working services for both 
authorities. 

 
Councillor Brenda Taylor thanked Home Safeguard for the excellent service it provided. 

 
RECOMMENDED: that Cabinet approve the business case for the upgrade of the Home 
Safeguard call handling system. 
 

51    Dates of the next meetings  

 
The Board noted the dates of the HRB meetings for the forthcoming civic year:  
Thursday 24 January 2019 – 2:30pm, Council Chamber, Exmouth Town Hall 
Thursday 28 March 2019 – 2:30pm, Council Chamber, Exmouth Town Hall 
 
 
 

Attendance List 

Board members present: 
Councillor Pauline Stott (Chairman) 
Peter Sullivan, Tenants (Vice-Chairman) 

Agenda page 8



Housing Review Board 22 November 2018 
 

Christine Drew, Independent Community Representative 
Alek Williams, Tenant 
Councillor Megan Armstrong 
Councillor Helen Parr 
Councillor Brenda Taylor 
 
Councillors also present (for some or all the meeting) 
J Elson 
S Gazzard 
 
Officers in attendance: 
Graham Baker, Senior Technical Officer Asset Management 
Sue Bewes, Landlord Services Manager 
Amy Gilbert-Jeans, Service Lead Housing 
John Golding, Strategic Lead Housing, Health and Environment 
Henry Gordon Lennox, Strategic Lead Governance and Licensing 
Andrew Mitchell, Housing Needs and Strategy Manager 
Alethea Thompson, Democratic Services Officer 
Natalie Brown, Information and Analysis Officer (Housing) 
Rob Ward, Accountant 
Michelle Davidson, Property and Asset Management 
Tim Laurence-Othen, Housing Projects Officer 
Giles Salter, Solicitor 
 
Councillor apologies: 
Mike Berridge, Tenants 
Julie Bingham, Independent Community Representative 
Pat Gore, Tenant 
Cat Summers, Tenant 
Councillor John O'Leary 
 
 
 
 

Chairman   Date:  

 

Agenda page 9



Report to: Housing Review Board 

 

Date of Meeting: 24 January 2019 

Public Document: Yes 

Exemption: None 

 

Agenda item: 8 

Subject: Draft Housing Service Plan 2019-2020 

Purpose of report: 
This report presents the draft Service Plan for the Housing Service 
covering the period 2019-2020 
 
The Service Plan is a document produced annually and sets out the 
key achievements over the past year and the forthcoming issues to be 
faced by the Service.  
A range of service improvements are identified through a number of 
SMART objectives. 
The plan considers service challenges and pressures over the next 3 
years. 
 
The Service Plan is presented in draft form for the Housing Review 
Board’s consideration. 

 

Recommendation: 
To consider, comment on and approve the Housing Service Plan 
for 2019-2020. 
 

Reason for 
recommendation: 

To enable the Housing Review Board to influence the production of the 
Service Plan. 

 

Officer: Amy Gilbert-Jeans 

Acting Housing Service Lead 

agilbertjeans@eastdevon.gov.uk 

Financial 
implications: 
 

The Service plan aligns to the draft budget for 2019/20 

Legal implications: There are no legal implications on which to comment. 

Equalities impact: Low Impact 

Risk: Low Risk 

Links to background 
information: 

 

 
Link to Council Plan: Living in this outstanding place. 

 

  

Agenda page 10

Agenda Item 8



1  Housing Service Plan 2019/2020 

 

1.1 For some time now all the Council’s services have organised an annual service planning 
exercise and produced a service plan, which sets out details of what the service does,  
achievements and future challenges and targets.  

 
1.2 The Service Plan is produced using a corporate template and it shows how the service 

improvements link with the Council Plan. The plan identifies the key service objectives, 
challenges ahead and outlines areas of performance that we should measure.  It also 
considers efficiencies, key risks, training needs, equalities, opportunities to do things 
differently and workforce planning. 

 
1.3 The Service Plan links closely with our Housing Strategy and is designed to compliment a 

number of other housing plans and policies as part of how we manage our own housing 
stock and the services we deliver in the private sector. There is also a strong link with the 
Councils Public Health Strategic Plan to ensure we help more people be and stay healthy, 
enhance self-care and community resilience and integrate and improve support for people 
in their own homes. 

 
1.4 The Service Plan is intended as a working document and the service managers will 

cascade the contents of the plan at their team meetings. It is a good discipline to complete 
an annual statement of what the Service expects to achieve, set out in a structured way 
using a template and involving staff, service users and members in the process.  

 
1.5 The plan presented contains some ambitious objectives that are built upon challenges 

faced through current service delivery. The objectives are split between the 4 areas of the 
housing service (landlord Services, property and asset, housing needs and strategy and 
private sector housing) however a number of the objectives sit across teams, an example 
being the creation of a mental health strategy for housing, an area that is currently 
impacting on all of our services. 
 

1.6 The headlines for the service plan include;  
 

 A strategic focus due to our current housing strategy expiring during the lifetime of the service 
plan. 

 A commitment to publish a refreshed homelessness strategy and to monitor it closely. 

 Revision of the HRA Business plan with updated stock condition data. 

 A focus on new development opportunities with the need to review the current acquisition 
programme. 

 A strong focus on Your Home Your Wellbeing project with the need for us to keep this at the 
forefront of our services and what we are providing. 

 A focus on mental health and how we are addressing the challenges this is presenting us 

 Mobilisation and launch of the Integrated Asset Management Contract. 

 The need to raise our profile in the private sector around the work of the private sector 
housing team 

 Visionary work for Home Safeguard with a realistic view of risks ahead including digital 
switchover, refresh of the marketing strategy, relocating the service, review of the staffing 
rota. 

 An emphasis on evidencing value for money with the need to scrutinise some areas to satisfy 
ourselves that we are achieving what matters most to the customer, in line with our systems 
thinking purpose. 

 Ensuring we are meeting the challenges of the digital age. 
 

Agenda page 11



1.7 The housing Leadership team have enjoyed being able to create the service plan as a way 
of setting out how we plan to get through what looks to be another challenging year ahead 
with a number of uncertainties in relation to national housing policy as well as a fragile 
financial position. 
 

1.8 The Service Plan ( Annexe 1) will be presented to the tenant involvement forum on the 22nd 
January, any feedback will be presented to the Board verbally on the 24th January. 

 
I welcome the Housing Review Board’s input into the Service Plan before it is finalised and        
reported to Cabinet. 

 

Agenda page 12



 

Service Plan 2019-20 Page 1 

 

 

 

 

Service Planning 2019-20 

   

Housing 

Version 0.1 

April 2019 – March 2020 

 

 

 

Portfolio holders: Cllr Jill Elson 

Housing Review Board Chair: Cllr Pauline Stott 

Strategic Lead:  John Golding  

Service Lead (Acting): Amy Gilbert-Jeans 

Agenda page 13

athompson
Typewritten text
Item 08 - Annex 1



 

Service Plan 2019-20 Page 2 

 

Service Plan Template 2019-20: Contents Page 

 

Section 1 Brief description of service and purpose(s) 

Section 2 Key achievements in 2018-19 

Section 3 Looking forward: what we will do in 2019-20 

Section 3a Looking forward: any Service challenges or pressures for next 3 years 

Section 3b Looking forward: options for doing things differently 

Section 3c Looking forward: what we will measure, how often and for whom 

Section 4  Resources and workforce planning   

Section 5 Training and development 

Section 6 Service risks: current and new/emerging 

Section 7  System Thinking 

Section 8 Equalities and safeguarding 

 

Notes for Strategic Leads and Service Leads: 

*Certain parts of this form will be pre-populated.  This will include your turnover, full time 

equivalent/headcount, absence rates and current net budget for your service. 

Shaded areas are for guidance. 

 

When you have completed your Service Plan: 

 Save to O:\Service Plans.  Final versions will be placed on the intranet/internet 

 Communicate it to your staff 

 Keep it under review – make it a live document which adds value! 

 Use it to formulate individual objectives 

 

  

Agenda page 14



 

Service Plan 2019-20 Page 3 

 

Section 1 – Brief description of service and purpose(s) 
What we do and who we  
deliver to 

Our over-riding vision is to deliver a decent home for all 
residents of East Devon. 
Our Housing Strategy sets out 4 key responsibilities; 

 To provide a housing options service for all who 
are homeless or threatened with homelessness 

 To provide, maintain and manage our own 
council housing stock 

 To work with housing developers and housing 
associations to deliver more affordable housing 

 To regulate and improve other social rented, 
private rented and owner occupied housing 

 
We have adopted the following purposes where we have 

undertaken Systems Thinking reviews: 

 To match the right people with the right home 
(voids & allocations). 

 Do the right repair at the right time, get it right 
first time, and stay fixed (responsive repairs). 

 Do the right service/repair at the right time, and 
leave safe (gas servicing). 

 To collect the right amount of rent at the right 
time (rent management). 

 Deal with customer emergencies promptly (Home 
Safeguard). 

 Better housing, better health (private sector 
housing). 

 To deliver outstanding Support Services to 

residents of East Devon regardless of housing 

tenure (supported housing). 

Our services are delivered in line with the Councils Public 
Health Strategic Plan to ensure we help more people be 
and stay healthy, enhance self-care and community 
resilience and integrate and improve support for people 
in their own homes. 

 

How we deliver and ensure equal access Our Housing Services are delivered through a 
combination of direct service delivery from our housing 
teams as well as a number of partnerships and 
contracting arrangements. 
All of the housing policies are subject to the completion 
of an equality impact assessment to ensure our services 
are fully accessible and we work in compliance with the 
corporate equalities policy. 

Agenda page 15



 

Service Plan 2019-20 Page 4 

 

We are regulated by the Social Housing Regulator and 
operate in compliance with the regulatory standards 
framework. 
We actively involve tenants in all aspects of our service 
to ensure wide consultation and the opportunity for 
tenants to influence the services we deliver. 
In Landlord Services we work to an adopted series of 
housing diversity commitments and a Housing customer 
charter. 
In our private sector housing team we deliver our 
services reactively and proactively and ensure 
enforcement action is taken in line with relevant 
legislation. 
We provide several methods of communication for 
customers to access our services and ensure our web 
pages are kept up to date. 
We promote the work of the housing service using a 
variety of methods including the use of social media. 

How we compare We use HouseMark for periodic benchmarking of our 
services and report the results to our Housing Review 
Board. 
We encourage tenants to complete customer 
satisfaction surveys to give us feedback on our services. 
We are one year into a three year longitudinal study in 
partnership with a local housing association and 
Birmingham University to look closely at the impact of 
our services on current tenants as well as those trying to 
access our services. 
We are members of The Devon and Cornwall Housing 
Options Partnership (DCHOP). The group aims to 
improve the consistency of housing options and 
homelessness services across Devon and Cornwall Local 
Authorities by developing shared policies, practices and 
service standards to ensure equality of services.  
In Private Sector Housing we compare our services 
within Devon through the Devon Practitioners Group. 
We monitor our service delivery reporting annually to 
national and local bodies. We deliver some of our 
Disabled Facilities Grant adaptations through Framework 
agreements with contractors. 
We have carried out significant amounts of reporting to 
Devon County Council for the Better Care Fund, which 
included comparing our statistics with the other Devon 
Local Authorities. 

Statutory elements of the service Management of our Council housing stock (Landlord 
Services) 

Agenda page 16



 

Service Plan 2019-20 Page 5 

 

Right to buy Council homes 
Homelessness/Housing Advice 
Management of the housing register and operation of an 
allocations team to ensure our housing stock is allocated 
appropriately. 
Creation of a tenancy strategy 
Safeguarding responsibilities- Children’s Act 2004 and 
Care Act 2014 
Health and Safety legislation in relation to asset 
management including: 

 Management and control of asbestos regulations 
2012 

 Gas safety (installation and use) Regulations 1998 

 Regulatory Reform ( fire safety) Order 2005 
Private Sector Housing enforcement including: 

 Empty Homes 

 Houses in multiple occupation and housing 
standards in the private sector. 

 Private water supply assessment and 
enforcement 

 Caravan site licensing 

 Provision of Disabled facilities Grant 

 Environmental pollution associated with Rural 
Drainage and statutory nuisance, public health 
and wellbeing 

Current net budget (excludes 
Internal support charges and capital 
budget) 

Housing service £-2,512,460 

 

Section 2 – Key achievements in 2018-19 

 
 

Briefly describe key achievements and what outcomes were created. 
This will inform Annual Report at year end. 

Strategic link to Council 
Plan priorities 

1 *figures quoted are correct up until the end of November 2018, 
these numbers will increase between now and the end of March 
2019. 

Housing Needs and Strategy 

We have prevented 92* homeless cases and accepted 7* cases  

We have housed 199* people off our housing register 

Encouraging 
communities to be 
outstanding 

Agenda page 17



 

Service Plan 2019-20 Page 6 

 

 We have purchased 12*properties through Right to buy receipts, 
including the purchase of a shared housing in Exmouth for use as 
temporary accommodation.  

We have completed the first year of a longitudinal study in 
partnership with LiveWest (Housing Association) and Birmingham 
University. The project is called ‘your home; your wellbeing’ and is 
exploring widely links between housing and health. The first year’s 
survey results have been analysed and a results infographic has been 
produced. A total of 25 interviews have been completed with both 
current tenants and with people on our housing waiting list in order 
to be able to directly compare the difference that being a social 
housing tenant makes. The study has also captured satisfaction of 
tenants of our current housing service. 

We have developed a performance monitoring dashboard that 
captures the ability to assess performance more easily for a number 
of key areas of service delivery. 

We have reviewed the tenancy agreement ensuring appropriate 
consultation with tenants in preparation for a new version of the 
agreement to be published in June 2019. 

We have continued to work towards completion of the review of 
tenant house files ensuring data held is fully GDPR compliant and 
files are available in an electronic format. 

We have implemented the new Homelessness Reduction Act 2018 
and ensured all changes to legislation are being delivered 
accordingly. 

In line with the changes in Homelessness legislation we have 
restructured the homelessness team and introduced some changes 
to front line service delivery such as the recruitment of housing 
triage Officers and a temporary accommodation officer. 

We have recruited a specialist Devon Home Choice (DHC) Officer to 
support residents with the DHC application process to ensure a 
customer centred approach is taken to supporting people through 
the application process. The post holder will also focus on the 
promotion of DHC as a way of encouraging people to help secure a 
home. 

2 Landlord Services 

Rent collection maintained at a high percentage of 99.66%* 

Encouraging 
communities to be 
outstanding 

Agenda page 18



 

Service Plan 2019-20 Page 7 

 

Delivered support services to 1344* residents living in sheltered 

housing with 95%* receiving a visit either weekly, fortnightly or 

monthly. 

Installed 527* pendant alarms to residents living in the private sector 

to offer re-assurance and protection of vulnerable people living in 

the community. 

Answered 51,621* alarm calls through Home Safeguard, a number of 

these calls led to emergency support having to be accessed to 

potential life threatening situations. 

Managed 103* ASB cases, assisting residents living in the community 

to feel safe and secure in their homes. 

We prevented 15* evictions taking place due to close cross team 
working involving focused preventative work. 

Implementation of rent cards to over 1500 tenants, replacing the 

need for rent book production each year. The cards will save time 

and money, only needing to be replaced when they are lost, wear 

out or a tenant moves property. The savings on book production 

alone will be in the region of £1000 per annum in material costs.  

Actively contributed towards social isolation and loneliness with a 

number of community projects including; 

 Millwey Memories 

 WWI Centenary Celebrations Across the District run 

by all 6 District Offices 

 Xbox Challenges in both Axminster & Exmouth, next 1 

due 20th December in Exmouth 

Undertaken 2* scheme upgrades to strengthen the resilience and 

reliability of the Home Safeguard alarm services 

In partnership with HALFF (Health and local food for families) 

charity, Palmer House sheltered housing scheme in Exmouth 

are on their 2nd 6 months stint of Healthy Eating Class. 

Dunning Court in Honiton had 3 successful Sessions of 

healthy eating.  The Axminster office run the Community 

lunches out of Millwey Community Centre which involve the 

Agenda page 19



 

Service Plan 2019-20 Page 8 

 

school children and our elderly tenants, they are run every 

half term so 4 x a year. They also ran a 6 month ‘cooking for 

1’ class 

Continued close working with the countryside team via funding for 

one day a week of the Education Ranger, to work with our tenants. 

Introduced discounted rates for tenants to some countryside 

attractions/events. 

Continued to support Sidmouth Family Adventure Days in 

partnership with Early Help.  This Supported local families and key 

workers to work with schools offering outdoor interaction 

opportunities to families to improve family dynamics. Again, multi-

generational, and have been held in and themed around woodlands, 

beaches, rivers and wetlands (again involving the Countryside team). 

Delivered 4* community festivals as well as a number of ‘play days’ 

in rural areas. 

Extended our community development programme to include;  

 Rotary Games 
 Right Track programme 
 Survival programme- outdoor programme 
 Greenday recycling 
 Fairshare food scheme 

Delivered a new electronic buggy storage facility at Dunning Court 
sheltered housing scheme, encouraging resident independence in 
line with health and safety management of the block. 

Continued to promote a robust approach to the management of 
blocks of flats in relation to fire safety with regular site inspections 
that immediately address any potential compromises in tenant 
safety. 

Worked closely with tenants during the summer to host 2 successful 
tenant conferences, 1 focusing on young people. 

 

3 Property and Asset 

In partnership with our contractors we delivered 11043* responsive 
repairs to our housing stock 

Encouraging 
communities to be 
outstanding 

Agenda page 20



 

Service Plan 2019-20 Page 9 

 

Various refurbishment programmes have been undertaken to 
update our housing stock including the delivery of 32* kitchens, 29* 
bathrooms, 148* boilers, 229* new front doors. 

We have undertaken 272* adaptions to stock (combination of small 
scale and larger scale adaptations). We have continued to respond to 
a 14.3 % increase in adaptations to stock compared to 2017/2018. 

We have assisted and encouraged tenant inspectors to inspect 26* 
of our void properties prior to the properties being let to tenants. 

We have 123 fire risk assessment in place for all of our blocks of 
flats. We have continued to make progress in relation to specific fire 
safety works on blocks of flats in line with recommendations from 
the fire risk assessments. We have recently been held up as a 
flagship authority by the fire service for our robust approach to these 
issues. 

Due to our current repairs and maintenance contracts expiring, we 
have reviewed our current offer to tenants and as a result re-
designed our core service to ensure we are delivering a service that 
captures what really matters to our customers. 

Our new model combines delivery of day to day responsive repairs, 
void management and planned works and on that basis has been 
called the Integrated Asset management contract. In order to 
improve value for money the new contractor is based on a price per 
property and price per void model. 

We have procured the new model through a competitive dialogue 
procurement process and have awarded the contract to the highest 
scoring bidder based on a 40% price and 60% quality model.  

The new contractor is due to take over the service in July 2019. 

We have undertaken removal of 2 large scale asbestos removal 
programmes in blocks of flats. 

Outstanding response to extreme winter weather of 2018 including 
the setting up of a temporary weekend call centre to assist tenants 
with property related problems. 

We have raised resident awareness of health and safety issues in a 
number of ways, including 

 Articles in the tenant newsletter 

Agenda page 21



 

Service Plan 2019-20 Page 10 

 

 Promotion of national campaigns including fire door safety 
week and gas safety week 

 Several reports have been presented to the Housing Review 
Board on the topic of compliance 

 Guest Speakers who are specialist in housing compliance 
matters have attended our resident repairs review group. 

We have continued to ensure compliance matters are prioritised 
within our stock and have created a reporting process where all 40 
areas of statutory compliance are carefully mapped and areas of 
concern can be easily captured, this is linked with the performance 
dashboard in order to gauge immediate information in relation to 
statutory compliance. 

We have actively involved tenants in the choices of property 
components to be used in our stock through involvement of tenants 
on Advantage South West procurement groups. 

From a green energy perspective we have completed our first large 
scale Air Source Heat Pump project in Rodney Close, Exmouth.  

 

4 Private Sector Housing 

Increased the number of private water supply risk assessments in the 
private sector by 31% with sampling levels up by 5% compared to 
2017. 

A reduction in Enforcement notices issued, this has reduced from 33 
in 2017 to 13 so far in 2018. This shows a positive trend that failed 
samples are reducing and depending on further analysis over more 
years shows that the quality and risk to health bacteria in private 
water supplies is improving. 
 
We served 3* Housing Act Prohibition Orders, a slight increase on 

the number served last year. 

Managed 17* reports of Empty Homes to date, 5 of these so far have 

been resolved and brought back into use. 

Maintained discussions with Devon County Council and Devon 
Authorities regarding the proportion of Better Care Funds to 
implement the Devon wide housing assistance policy. Responded to 
a 66% increase in applications for Disabled Facilities Grant’s 
compared To 2017. 

Encouraging 
communities to be 
outstanding 

Agenda page 22



 

Service Plan 2019-20 Page 11 

 

Continued development of a new civil penalty scheme introduced by 
the Housing and Planning Act for implementation. 

Created the EcoFlex statement allowing energy companies/agencies 
to seek out eligible customers and provide energy efficiency 
measures. Signposted 93* customers to the service. 

Initiated data inputting with strata to provide us with the ability to 
utilise and map data regarding the management of housing in the 
private sector. 

 
 

Section 3 – Looking forward : what we will do in 2019-20 (service objectives) 
Key Service Objectives (please include 

consultation or procurement activity required) 

Please highlight any projects so that they may 

be recorded and monitored in SPAR. See project 

guidance document for the definition of a 

project.  

Financial/ 

corporate 

resource 

 Lead Officers Start 

date  

End date 

1) Encouraging our communities to be 

outstanding 

    

Produce a new Housing Strategy focusing on how 

we will deliver our services from 2020-2024. 

 

Housing 

Revenue 

Account 

and 

General 

fund 

Housing 

Service Lead 

April 

2019 

 

 

 

 

 

March 

2020 

Following the refresh of the HRA business plan, 

we will review our approach to delivering 

affordable housing. We will consider new build 

development that focuses on providing homes for 

1 bedroom households recognising that these 

make up over 60% of East Devon’s housing need.   

Subject to all necessary permissions we will 

explore modular housing opportunities and seek 

to progress our first scheme. 

Housing 

Revenue 

Account 

Housing 

Service Lead 

and Housing 

Needs and 

Strategy 

Manager 

April 

2019 

March 

2020 

Agenda page 23

http://intranet/ourcouncil/services/finance/Documents/Project%20Documents/Guide%20to%20Project%20Management%20EDDC.docx
http://intranet/ourcouncil/services/finance/Documents/Project%20Documents/Guide%20to%20Project%20Management%20EDDC.docx


 

Service Plan 2019-20 Page 12 

 

Publish and promote the Homelessness strategy 

focusing on 4 key priorities; 

 Increasing prevention initiatives 

 Minimising rough sleeping 

 Improving health and wellbeing 

 Increasing accommodation options 
 

Create a working group that will meet 6 monthly 

to review progress being made in relation to the 

objectives in the homeless strategy.  

Report to the Housing Review Board and Cabinet 

on progress. 

General 

Fund 

Housing 

Service Lead 

and Housing 

Needs and 

Strategy 

Manager 

April 

2019 

September 

2019 

Review applications on the Housing register to 

ensure we have a realistic view of current 

demand.  Present a report to the Housing Review 

Board outlining changes to the waiting list as a 

result of the review. 

Housing 

Revenue 

Account 

Housing Needs 

and Strategy 

Manager 

April 

2019 

March 

2020 

We will review the outcomes and progress being 

made in relation to the 2013 garage management 

task and finish forum. We will consider 

redevelopment options of the sites that are not 

fit for purpose with a view to considering 

providing more affordable housing.  

Reduce the number of empty garages that are 

considered lettable in order to increase income. 

Housing 

Revenue 

Account 

Housing Needs 

and Strategy 

Manager 

April 

2019 

December 

2019 

Complete the second year of your home, your 

wellbeing project. 

Publicise and Promote the first year’s results of 

the project by; 

 Networking with national housing bodies 

to publicise the results nationally 

 Brief Members, key stakeholders and staff 

across the Council 

 Communicate the results to our own 

tenants 

 Link the project into the corporate Public 

Health Strategy  

Housing 

Revenue 

Account 

Housing Needs 

and Strategy 

Manager 

April 

2019 

December 

2019 

Agenda page 24



 

Service Plan 2019-20 Page 13 

 

 Use case study examples as awareness 

raising of the importance and role of the 

housing service. 

Continue to support our purpose to match the 

right person to the right home by assisting at 

least 30 households to downsize. 

Housing 

Revenue 

Account 

Housing Needs 

and Strategy 

Manager 

April 

2019 

March 

2020 

Deliver a strength based community 

development project at St Pauls in Honiton, 

measuring the wellbeing and health of tenants at 

the start and at the end of the project in order to 

track impact. The overall objective is to evidence 

better wellbeing of tenants involved in the 

project.  

Housing 

Revenue 

Account 

Landlord 

Services 

Manager 

April 

2019 

March 

2020 

As part of continued focus on the Littleham 

Estate in Exmouth (nationally recognised as an 

area of deprivation) Conduct a review of the 

Littleham Together Project, capturing progress 

since the start of 2018 with a view to measuring 

the value of community development work that 

has been undertaken in this area. 

Work in partnership with our new contractors to 

deliver all social value objectives as set out in the 

new contract. 

Housing 

Revenue 

Account 

Landlord 

Services 

Manager and 

Property and 

Asset Manager 

April 

2019 

March 

2020 

Create a Mental Health Strategy for Housing in 

order to capture the increasing impact mental 

health is having on our tenants to ensure our 

teams have the right toolkits to manage. 

The strategy will explore and build upon current 

ways the housing service is managing mental 

health with the objective of ensuring this is 

embedded in our day to day service delivery. 

Housing 

Revenue 

Account  

Housing 

Service Lead 

Landlord 

Services 

Manager 

April 

2019 

September 

2019 

Deliver 30 events in partnership with HALFF 

charity (changing lives through food) promoting 

healthy eating and cooking. 

 

Housing 

Revenue 

Account 

Landlord 

Services 

Manager 

April 

2019 

March 

2020 

Agenda page 25



 

Service Plan 2019-20 Page 14 

 

Take a team of young people from East Devon (to 

include tenants) to compete in the South West 

Youth Games on behalf of the district. 

Housing 

Revenue 

Account 

Landlord 

Services 

Manager 

April 

2019 

September 

2019 

Refresh the resident involvement strategy to 

ensure a focus on equality and diversity that 

encourages tenants from a wide range of diverse 

backgrounds to become involved with the 

housing service. 

Consult with  all key stakeholders and launch the 

strategy at the 2019 tenant conference 

Housing 

Revenue 

Account 

Landlord 

Services 

April 

2019 

December 

2019 

Continue to promote and address social isolation 

and loneliness amongst our residents ensuring 

tenants in every area of the district have at least 

an annual opportunity to participate in a project 

nearby where they live. 

Housing 

Revenue 

Account 

Landlord 

Services 

Manager 

April 

2019 

March 

2020 

Prepare and commence the start of the 

Integrated Asset Management Contract (IAMC) 

ensuring a smooth transition from the current 

contracting arrangements to ensure minimal 

disruption to residents.  

Achieve all actions and subsequent deadlines as 

set out through the final IAMC mobilisation plan.  

To include; 

 An innovative communications 

strategy maximising resident 

engagement opportunities 

 Embedding an outstanding 

approach to communication, 

embracing co-location and all joint 

working initiatives 

 Supporting the property and asset 

team through the changes to day 

to day working practices. 

 Measure success of performance 

monthly against agreed KPIs 

 Achieve higher customer 

satisfaction then currently exists 

(82%) 

Housing 

Revenue 

Account 

Housing 

Service Lead 

and Property 

And Asset 

Manager 

April 

2019 

January 

2020 

Agenda page 26



 

Service Plan 2019-20 Page 15 

 

We will hold a contractors Safeguarding 

conference to promote our ‘eyes and ears 

campaign’ that encourages contractors to report 

any safeguarding concerns. 

Housing 

Revenue 

Account 

Property and 

Asset Manager 

and Landlord 

Services 

Manager 

April 

2019 

January 

2020 

We will publish our Fire Risk Assessments for 

communal blocks of flats on our website 

encouraging tenant’s awareness of fire safety 

issues. 

Housing 

Revenue 

Account 

Property and 

Asset Manager 

April 

2019 

September 

2019 

Develop a strategy for pro-actively targeting 

Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO’s) landlords 

in East Devon.  

Implement the strategy with a view to 

considerably increasing the number of licenses 

held. Review the strategy after 6 months to track 

progress and measure outcomes. 

General 

Fund 

Private Sector 

Housing 

Manager 

April 

2019 

March 

2020 

Pro-actively raise our profile with local landlords 

by attending local landlord forums and directly 

engaging with managing agents to encourage 

standards to be raised which in turn will improve 

the living conditions of people residing in the 

private sector. 

Develop a property agents/landlords rating 

scheme. 

General 

Fund 

Private Sector 

Housing 

Manager 

April 

2019 

March 

2020 

Explore the opportunities for using the better 

care fund for the provision of an additional 

resource to ensure we are maximising our ability 

to spend our allocation of the funding. 

General 

Fund 

Private Sector 

Housing 

Manager 

April 

2019 

September 

2019 

2) Developing an outstanding local economy     

Following the outcomes of a viability assessment 

on the Home Safeguard Service, update and 

refresh the marketing strategy with a view to 

undertake an intense marketing campaign to 

increase income by at least 10%. 

Upgrade the Home Safeguard systems and 

relocate the Home Safeguard service into 

Exmouth Town Hall 

General 

Fund 

Landlord 

Services 

Manager 

April 

2019 

March 

2020 

Agenda page 27



 

Service Plan 2019-20 Page 16 

 

Capture and promote a real-life case study from a 

tenant that has directly benefited from our 

community development service as a way of 

raising awareness and promoting the service 

amongst key stakeholders, tenants and Members. 

Housing 

Revenue 

Account 

Landlord 

Services 

Manager 

April 

2019 

July 2019 

Supporting local businesses through spending 

locally, where procurement rules permit. 

Housing 

Revenue 

Account 

and 

General 

Fund. 

Housing 

Leadership 

Team 

April 

2019 

March 

2020 

3) Delivering and promoting our outstanding 

environment 

    

We will take a robust approach to all matters that 

relate to health and safety within our own 

housing stock as well as in relation to 

responsibilities we have in the private sector. 

Success of this will be measured against specific 

compliance KPI’s 

We will continue to educate our communities in 

awareness of health and safety issues in their 

homes and will pro-actively participate in all 

national safety directives including gas safety 

week and fire door safety week. 

Housing 

Revenue 

Account 

Property and 

Asset Manager 

and Private 

Sector Housing 

Manager 

April 

2019 

March 

2020 

Review the energy efficiency provision of the 

passivhaus shared house project in Exmouth and 

report back to the Housing Review Board on the 

findings. 

Deliver the next air source heat pump scheme as 

part of progress towards eliminating fuel poverty 

amongst tenants. 

Housing 

Revenue 

Account 

Property and 

Asset Manager 

April 

2019 

March 

2020 

Develop a social media campaign raising the 

profile of energy efficiency measures and carbon 

awareness amongst our communities. This should 

capture all housing tenures and should actively 

promote services such as LEAP and Cosy Devon. 

Housing 

Revenue 

Account 

and 

General 

Fund 

Housing 

Leadership 

Team 

April 

2019 

March 

2020 

Agenda page 28



 

Service Plan 2019-20 Page 17 

 

Develop a good practice toolkit/policy for 

contractors who are engaged through delivery of 

adaptations in the private sector outlining our 

expectations in relation to environmental factors 

and standards we expect to be achieved. 

General 

Fund 

Private Sector 

Housing 

Manager 

April 

2019 

March 

2020 

Encourage and promote use of the community 

orchards and encourage greater ownership and 

management from the surrounding communities. 

Work with Countryside and Streetscene to 

promote and support the development of nature 

recovery networks building on the benefits from 

a health and wellbeing perspective. 

Housing 

Revenue 

Account 

Landlord 

Services 

Manager 

April 

2019 

March 

2020 

4) Continuously improving to be an outstanding 

council 

    

Carry out a project to measure and survey how 

our community development team add value to 

external agencies and local organisations working 

across the district.  

Housing 

Revenue 

Account 

Landlord 

Services 

Manager 

April 

2019 

September 

2019 

We will undertake a stock condition survey in 

order to refresh our Asset management plan, 30 

year business plan and drive our next 5 year 

improvement aspirations to council stock. 

Housing 

Revenue 

Account 

Property and 

Asset Manager 

April 

2019 

March 

2020 

We will carry out a feasibility study to explore the 

opportunity of a handyperson assistance service 

in the private sector as a new way of generating 

additional income for the Council. 

 

General 

Fund 

Private Sector 

Housing 

Manager 

Landlord 

Services 

Manager 

Property and 

Asset Manager 

April 

2019 

March 

2020 

We will review and update the Housing Revenue 

Account Business Plan 

Housing 

Revenue 

Account 

Housing 

Service Lead 

April 

2019 

September 

2019 

On release of the Open Housing tenant portal, we 

will promote the digital agenda by holding tenant 

portal workshops monthly to encourage, support 

and assist tenant’s to access our services online. 

Housing 

Revenue 

Account 

Landlord 

Services 

Manager 

April 

2019 

March 

2020 

Agenda page 29



 

Service Plan 2019-20 Page 18 

 

Are there any objectives outlined for your 

service on the current Council Plan (2016-2020) 

which cannot be achieved or which have 

changed 

    

N/A     

 

Section 3 a – Looking forward: any Service challenges or pressures for the next three years?  

(Revenue/Capital) 

 

1. Operating the Housing Revenue Account under the self-financing regime and managing high levels 

of debt and government imposed rent reductions whilst continuously improving services and 

delivering our development aspirations. 

2. Managing the impact of Universal Credit and other potential changes under future welfare reforms 

which could lead to a loss of income for the housing revenue account as well as place more 

residents in financial hardship leading to increasing numbers of residents in the district living in 

poverty. 

3. Continuing to manage the impact of right to buy sales as part of the government’s drive towards 

home ownership which results in a loss of social housing. 

4. Growing numbers of homelessness households approaching our housing options service for 

assistance as required through the Homelessness reduction Act.  This is leading to increasing usage 

of temporary accommodation. 

Continue to contribute towards the resettlement of refugees and asylum seekers as required 

through central government policy. 

5. Continuing to enforce housing standards in the private sector and ensuring we are responding as 

appropriate in line with future changes to legislation. 

6. Continuing to manage and meet housing needs and deliver a supply of affordable homes. 

7. Continuing to support our ageing population to stay in their own homes, manage the continuing 

rising demand for property adaptations across all tenures. 

8. Overcoming the problem of insufficient subsidy/grant/opportunities to provide new affordable 

homes. 

9. Providing value for money support services, integrating with social care and ensuring that the 

Better Care Fund is targeted to East Devon clients. 

10. Implementing and combing the work of the housing service with the health and wellbeing 

priorities as set out in our Public Health Strategy. 

Agenda page 30



 

Service Plan 2019-20 Page 19 

 

11. Increasing challenges in relation to rising numbers of people suffering from mental health issues 

means we must respond appropriately and effectively in order to support people and limit 

consequences such as failure to sustain tenancies. This effects a number of front line teams and 

impacts staff and customers in different ways. There is the need for us to strengthen our links with 

the local mental health trust as well as specialist mental health support agencies.  

12. Improving the energy efficiency of homes across the district to meet our aspiration of minimum 

levels of energy usage. Ensuring we are in line with central government aspirations for SAP ratings 

of dwellings and responding to changes accordingly. 

13. Improving the lives of families presenting to us under the Early Help scheme. 

14. Recruiting and training of professional/technical staff to have the right staff in the right job. 

Promoting housing as a career of choice in order to attract ambitious, forward thinking individuals 

who can continue to drive the housing service forward. 

15. Ensure our approach to compliance issues in relation to management of our stock and continuing 

to ensure this is core business with robust policies and procedures in place. Monitor closely 

outcomes from the Grenfell enquiry ensuring that all new legislation is implemented as 

appropriate. 

16. Investing in non-housing assets such as community centres; play areas; mobility scooter stores etc. 

17. Upon receipt of stock condition data information, review and refresh the homes improvement 

programme in relation to the delivery of new kitchens, bathrooms and heating systems. 

18. Prepare to respond to the outcomes on the Social Housing Green Paper with the potential of 

sector league tables, changes in legislative compliance and safety standards, increased tenant 

involvement as well as other potential changes in social housing regulation. 

19. Manage the transition of the current incumbent contractors to the new contractor ensuring a 

seamless transition and that current service standards are maintained accordingly to ensure 

minimal disruption to tenants. 

Mobilising the new Integrated Asset Management contract, delivering service improvements, 

strengthening value for money and delivering our social value aspirations. 

20. Prepare the service for the 2021 digital switchover and manage the impact on the Home Safeguard 

operating equipment ensuring no disruption to customers of the service. 

Section 3 b– Looking forward: options for doing things differently – 

financial savings / increasing income / changes in how services are delivered 

1. There is the need to keep the Housing Revenue Account business plan under constant review to                  

ensure we are managing debt accordingly and furthermore due to the borrowing cap being lifted, 

looking for potential opportunities to deliver more affordable housing. We need to ensure we are 

Agenda page 31



 

Service Plan 2019-20 Page 20 

 

maintaining strong links with potential partners and key stakeholders as there may also be 

opportunities to jointly deliver more affordable housing. 

2.  Continue to implement the Open Housing management system with a drive towards tenant self- 

service portals being rolled out. This potentially will cut down on demand for services in the 

current format and will lead to a review of resources to make any necessary changes to service 

delivery. Open Housing should also be driving efficiencies with how we deliver services, ensuring 

that up to date data in relation to tenants and properties is stored appropriately to ensure ease of 

access to information. 

3.  Explore and review the ‘housing hub’ concept as part of a focus on more generic working and a 

way of delivering more customer focused housing services. 

4.  Manage the new Asset Management and work in close partnership with out new contractors to      

implement a focus on asset management principles as opposed to reactive response works. The 

new contract will transform current service delivery and will bring a number of benefits in terms of 

a more customer focused approach to services such as the ability to confirm appointments at first 

point of contact. The contract will set out to deliver some ambitious social value objectives that will 

benefit our tenants in a number of ways. 

5.  Following refreshing the Home Safeguard marketing strategy, attract more business and explore 

development opportunities in line with funding and grants that may be available to promote 

telecare and telehealth. 

6.  Ensure a greater enforcement presence in the private sector to drive up standards and set 

examples of what can happen as a consequence of housing not being managed accordingly. 

7.  Respond to the findings of the longitudinal survey and the Viewpoint Survey and ensure we use 

the information to influence our service delivery. 

8. Consider a proactive approach to adapting sheltered housing units to ensure that are fit for 

purpose rather than being reactive to needs as they arise. 

9.  Expand the use of social media to communicate with our customers to raise the profile of the work 

of the housing service. 

10. Continue to work with Environmental Health, StreetScene and Countryside on shared goals and 

aspirations as set out in the Council plan. 

11. Consideration to introducing or increasing service charges as a way of increasing income to the 

general fund.  

12. Expand and maximise our membership of Advantage South West ( ASW) to assist us in relation to 

resolving procurement challenges as well as other ASW housing driven projects. 

 

Agenda page 32



 

Service Plan 2019-20 Page 21 

 

Section 3 c – Looking forward: Changes to measures and performance indicators - what we will 

measure, how often and for whom 

 

Housing Service Quarterly Performance Indicator Report to continue to be produced quarterly and 

reported to the Housing Review Board. This contains KPI’s for all core service delivery areas.  

Dashboard reporting also in place to monitor performance information. 

 

Measure/indicator How often 
– monthly, 
quarterly, 
bi-
annually, 
annually 

For whom? 
Cabinet, 
Overview 
and 
Scrutiny  

Link to 
Corporate 
Priorities 
(listed on 
page 3 1,2,3 
or 4) 

Responsible 
Officer for 
production of 
management 
information 
(Strategic Leads 
to provide 
comments) 

Retain this 
measure 
(yes/no) or 
new 

1. Rent collected against 

rent due 

Monthly Housing 

Review 

Board 

Encouraging 

communities 

to be 

outstanding 

Strategic Lead- 

Housing/ 

Housing Service 

Lead 

Yes 

2. Void period- end to end 

times 

Monthly Housing 

Review 

Board 

Encouraging 

communities 

to be 

outstanding 

Strategic Lead- 

Housing/ 

Housing Service 

Lead 

Yes 

3. Number of new 

affordable homes 

delivered/ number of 

homes lost through RTB 

Monthly 

 

Housing 

Review 

Board 

Encouraging 

communities 

to be 

outstanding 

Strategic Lead- 

Housing/Housing 

Service Lead 

Yes 

4. Housing Strategy Annually Scrutiny 

Committee 

and Housing 

Review 

Board 

Encouraging 

communities 

to be 

outstanding 

Strategic Lead- 

Housing/ 

Housing Service 

Lead 

Yes 

5. Housing Revenue 

Account Business Plan. 

Quarterly Housing 

Review 

Board 

Encouraging 

communities 

to be 

outstanding 

Strategic Lead- 

Housing/ 

Housing Service 

Lead 

Yes 

Agenda page 33



 

Service Plan 2019-20 Page 22 

 

6. Housing Revenue 

Account budget. 

Quarterly Housing 

Review 

Board 

Encouraging 

communities 

to be 

outstanding 

Strategic Lead- 

Housing/ 

Housing Service 

Lead 

Yes 

7. Private Sector Renewal 

Plan & Home Energy 

Conservation Act & 

Empty Homes Plans. 

Annually Scrutiny 

Committee 

Encouraging 

communities 

to be 

outstanding 

Private Sector 

Housing 

Manager 

Yes 

8. Risk assessments of 

private water supplies. 

Quarterly Scrutiny 

Committee 

Encouraging 

communities 

to be 

outstanding 

Private Sector 

Housing 

Manager 

Yes 

9. Number of  Council 

tenants downsizing 
Monthly 

To be 

captured in 

quarterly 

KPI 

monitoring 

report 

Encouraging 

communities 

to be 

outstanding 

 

 

Housing Needs 

and Strategy 

Manager 

 

New 

10. Number of licensed 

houses in multiple 

occupation. 

Monthly 
Scrutiny 

Committee 

Encouraging 

communities 

to be 

outstanding 

Private Sector 

Housing 

Manager 
New 

11. End to end time for a 

receipt of a statement of 

need to granting 

approval. 

Quarterly 
Scrutiny 

Committee 

Encouraging 

communities 

to be 

outstanding 

Private Sector 

Housing 

Manager 
New 

12. Number of Safeguarding 

referrals made ( 

children’s/adults) 

Quarterly 

Housing 

Review 

Board 

Encouraging 

communities 

to be 

outstanding 

Landlord 

Services 

Manager 
New 

 

Section 4 – Resources and workforce planning 

Full time equivalents/Headcount as at 01/04/2018 FTE = 98.52 

Headcount = 110 

Agenda page 34



 

Service Plan 2019-20 Page 23 

 

Turnover (April 2017 to March 2018) Voluntary Turnover = 8% 

 Voluntary & Non Voluntary Turnover = 9% 

Absence (April 2017 to March 2018) Days lost per person:  11.7 days 

 

Section 5 – Training and development  

Team based skills/development required 

– please identify training required that is 

not currently available 

Who for Expected outcome When  

1. All managers to ensure completion of 

mandatory management training modules 

Managers Awareness of all 

management policies to 

ensure implementation. 

Ongoing 

 

2. Following a recent review of health and 

safety training, all staff must ensure 

completion of all mandatory health and 

safety training requirements. 

All staff Competent staff that can 

manage health and safety 

risks accordingly, ensuring 

safe systems of work. 

Ongoing in line 

with refresher 

training 

requirements. 

3.Customer Service All staff Improved customer 

service and complaint 

handling 

During 

2019/2020 

4. Equalities All staff Awareness of our 

responsibilities 

During 

2019/2020 

5. Safeguarding Children and Adults All staff Awareness of Councils 

policy and reporting 

procedures 

During 

2019/2020 

6. Prevent ( radicalisation) and 

Countylines 

All front 

line staff 

Awareness of how to 

report concerns 

During 

2019/2020 

7. Data protection and information 

security 

All staff Awareness of the Councils 

policy and housing specific 

requirements 

During 

2019/2020 

8. Social media policy and use Selected 

staff 

Appropriate and positive 

use of social media 

During 

2019/2020 

13. Systems thinking Managers Take forward the next 

series of reviews 

During 

2019/2020 

Agenda page 35



 

Service Plan 2019-20 Page 24 

 

14. Continuing professional development/ 

professional training as appropriate 

Selected 

staff 

Maintaining high 

standards of professional 

knowledge and conduct 

Ongoing 

15. Open Housing document and mobile 

device training 

All staff All users able to benefit 

from the housing 

management system 

Ongoing 

16. Mental Health Act training Selected 

staff 

To ensure staff are 

competent and aware of 

our legal position in 

relation to dealing with 

tenants with mental 

health issues. 

Ongoing 

17. Compliance training as required; to 

include but not limited to asbestos 

awareness/ fire safety/legionella and 

electrical safety.  

Selected 

staff 

To ensure staff are 

competent and aware of 

legal expectations in 

relation to the 

management of our 

buildings. 

Ongoing 

 

Section 6 – Risks  

New/emerging risks description – 

See attached Risk Register for 

current service risks 

Impact  

[minor, 

significant 

serious, 

major] 

Likely-

hood 

[remote, 

unlikely, 

likely, 

very 

likely] 

How managed/controlled 

What action will you take to 

reduce/minimise risk 

1. Failure to protect against 

tenancy fraud 
Serious Very likely 

Occupancy checks on tenants in temporary 

and general accommodation, Social 

housing fraud initiative, Tenancy 'sign up' 

checks, Tenancy Fraud Strategy. 

2. Fraud in respect of Rent 

Collection, allocations and 

Right to Buy purchases 
Significant Unlikely 

Internal procedures, Systems Thinking 

review, OpenHousing. Manual controls. 

Working in partnership with the fraud team 

to share information. 

3. Loss of rental income 

Serious Very likely 

New tenancy 'sign up', Systems Thinking 

Regime, Procedures for income 

management, Rent payment methods. 

Agenda page 36



 

Service Plan 2019-20 Page 25 

 

Monitoring closely the impact of universal 

credit 

4. Right to Buy (sales differ from 

Business Plan expectations) 

and spend not in line with 

DCLG agreement 

Significant Unlikely 

Cancel agreement, Costs could be reduced, 

Loans could be increased. 

5. Safeguarding adults and 

children 

Serious Very likely 

Safeguarding Policy.  Risk Assessments, 

Mobile Support Officer's Procedure 

Manual, Devon County 'Pathways'. 

Regular team meeting agenda item. 

Contractor toolbox talks 

6. Sheltered housing 

improvements ensuring the 

stock is fit for purpose 
Significant Unlikely 

Funding availability, Tenant involvement. 

Liaising with Occupational Therapists to 

design sheltered housing appropriately at 

void stage. 

7. A major homelessness 

incident Major Unlikely 

Training for an emergency, Out of hours 

contact, Emergency and Rest Centre Plan, 

Devon County Council joint working. 

8. Failure to achieve Housing 

Strategy targets 
Major Likely 

Monitoring performance, Assign actions to 

lead managers, SPAR.net monitoring. 

9. Failure to provide accurate or 

helpful 

housing/homelessness advice 

Serious Very likely 

Staff training, Staff supervision, Scrutinise 

decisions, Procedures in place. 

10. Maintain a Housing Register 
Serious Very likely 

Staff training, Policy and procedures, Devon 

Home Choice. 

11. New-Build Council 

Homes/acquisition scheme 

failure 
Major Very likely 

Robust development proposals, 

Development expertise, Homes England 

bids and grants, Joining Partnership South 

West development consortium. 

12. Failure of Responsive Repairs 

contractor and failure to 

mobilise new contracting 

arrangements. 
Serious Very likely 

Contract performance monitoring, Contract 

conditions, Ability to transfer work 

between contractors.  

De-mobilisation plan for current 

contractors linking in with mobilisation plan 

for new contractor. 

13. A compliance failure on 

gas/solid fuel safety; fire 

safety; asbestos; health & 

safety; legionella 

Major Likely 

Policies and procedures in place to ensure 

robust approaches taken to compliance. 

Priority given to this work. Competent 

contractors. Auditing and checking 

processes. Contract monitoring meetings 

14. Loans taken out for self-

financing 
Serious Unlikely 

Set aside provision for repayment, Tracking 

Welfare Reform. 

Agenda page 37



 

Service Plan 2019-20 Page 26 

 

15. Unforeseen expenditure on 

council homes Serious Unlikely 

Stock survey information, Insurance, 

Improvement programmes, HRA Business 

Plan. 

16. Housing staff lone working 

Major Very likely 

Policies in place to mitigate the risk, Home 

Safeguard monitoring, Health and Safety 

training, bespoke Lone Working 

arrangements. 

17. Failure of private water 

supply 
Serious Likely 

Water supply sampling, Risk assessments, 

Advice. 

18. Fraud in respect of housing 

grants 
Serious Very likely 

Capital expenditure monitoring, Monitoring 

of grant approvals. 

19. Home Safeguard system 

failure/interruption to 

service.  

Failures due to digital 

switchover 

Major Very likely 

Disaster recovery arrangements, 

maintenance contract, UPS system, staff 

trained on system failure. Joint agreement 

with Exeter City Council. Liaison with 

Telecare Services Authority to ensure 

position on digital switchover 

 

Section 7 – System thinking 

Which services have been reviewed Responsive repairs and works to voids 
Allocations 
Tenancy sign up process 
Aspects of private sector housing 
Mobile Support Services 
Estate Management 
 
 
 

Future systems to be reviewed Service Date of review 

New contracting arrangements will be 
closely supervised in order to 
incorporate systems thinking 
principles from the start. 
 
Private Sector Housing enforcement 
Tenancy condition enforcement 
Home Safeguard installations 
Rent arrears 
Disabled facilities Grants 
LGSR Gas safety checks 
 

During 2019 as 
part of 
mobilisation 
 
 
During 2019 

 

Agenda page 38



 

Service Plan 2019-20 Page 27 

 

Section 8 - Equalities and safeguarding 

New / emerging equalities risks Impact 

Level 

[High, 

Medium, 

Low] 

How managed/controlled 

1. Housing Strategy Medium Equalities Analysis undertaken on the 

plan. 

2. HRA Business Plan Medium Equalities Analysis undertaken on the 

plan. 

3. Homelessness Strategy  High Equalities Analysis refreshed with new 

strategy. 

4. Private Sector Renewal Plan Medium Equalities Analysis refreshed with new 

strategy. 

5. Devon Home Choice High Equalities Analysis undertaken on the 

Allocations policy. 

6. Tenant Involvement Strategy Medium Equalities Analysis undertaken on the 

strategy. 

7. Failure to raise a safeguarding concern High Equalities Analysis undertaken on the 

Safeguarding policy.  

 

 

Agenda page 39



Report to: Housing Review Board 

 

Date of Meeting: 24 January 2019 

Public Document: Yes 

Exemption: None 

Review date for 
release 

None  

 

Agenda item: 9 

Subject: Draft Housing Revenue Account  Revenue and Capital Budgets 
2019/20 

Purpose of report: 
 
This report presents the draft Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
revenue and capital budgets for 2019/20 for the Housing Review 
Board. 
 
Recommendations from this meeting will be presented to Cabinet on 6th 
February 2019 when members will finalise budget proposals to be 
recommended to Council.  

 

Recommendation: 
That the draft HRA revenue and capital estimates are 
recommended to be approved by the Housing Review Board. 
 

Reason for 
recommendation: 

There is a requirement to set a budget for the HRA for 2019/20 

Officer: Simon Davey, Strategic Lead – Finance (CFO/S151) 

sdavey@eastdevon.gov.uk    01395 517490 

Financial 
implications: 
 

Financial details are contained within the report 

Legal implications: No legal observations are required 

Equalities impact: Low Impact 

. 

Risk: Low Risk 

Risks have been considered in preparing the budgets and the financial 
implications have been assessed at the point of preparation. Various 
budget assumptions have been made including the treatment of 
inflation and interest rates; estimates on the level and timing of capital 
receipts; the treatment of demand led pressures; the treatment of 
planned efficiency savings/productivity gains; levels of income; financial 
risks inherent in any new arrangements; capital developments; the 
availability of funds to deal with major contingencies and the need for 
any provisions.  In each of these areas the Council’s financial standing, 
management and track record have been considered in order to 
prepare robust budget proposals.  
    

Agenda page 40

Agenda Item 9

mailto:sdavey@eastdevon.gov.uk


Other specific areas of risk have been highlighted where appropriate 
within the report and within the budget book at service level. 
 
The risks associated with Brexit were highlighted and considered in the 
Financial Plan 2019-2029 linked to this report.  There is also a Strategic 
Risk included in the Council risk register.  The risks have been 
assessed under the operational parameters of this Council.  
 

Links to background 
information: 

 
   

 
 

Link to Council Plan: Budgets and related service plans link back to the Council Plan 

 

1. Process 

 

1.1 Under the Council’s Constitution process for the annual budget Cabinet have adopted draft 
revenue and capital budgets which include budgets for HRA, these are now being 
presented to the Housing Review Board for consideration and recommendation back to 
Cabinet on 6th February 2019 in order for a final recommendation to be made to Council. 

 
1.2 At the same time as preparing the draft budget, draft service plans have been prepared for 

member consideration and the two documents are align.   
 

 
2  Housing Revenue Account Budget 

 

The Overall Financial Picture 

 

2.1 The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is underpinned and influenced by the 30 year 
Business Plan, this Plan needs a refresh to consider: 
 

 The implication of a new maintenance contractor,  
 

 to reflect additional work on asset management planning and to further develop 
 management information from the Housing IT system,  
 

 the end of rent reductions, 
 

 implication of Universal Credit, and 
  

 a need to reconsider the debt level and use of Right to Buy Receipts linked to future 
 development ambitions.  
 
This will be done in 2019/20 for the 2020/21 budget, the picture for the draft 2019/20 budget 
is very much stand still in that; it provides an acceptable surplus to contribute to the 
purchase programme to counteract the impact of continuing Right to Buy (RTB) sales and 
ensures capital receipts are spent and not returned to government.  The proposed 
continued investment of £5m a year.  The budget also continues to invest in our existing 
properties at a similar level.   
 
 

Agenda page 41



2.2 The Governments Rent Reduction Policy of 1% continues with the final year being 2019/20, 
with an estimated reduced income of £0.152m. This results in an average weekly rent for 
2019/20 of £79.09.  Garage rents have been factored in at an increase of 3% taking this to 
an average weekly rent of £12.50. 

 
2.3 The HRA currently has 4,204 dwellings and 738 garages, there has been 8 Right to Buy 

sales in 2018 to date (32 last full year) and we have added 12 new dwellings in the current 
year (22 last full year). 

 

Draft Revenue Budget 2019/20 
 

2.4 The budget book details the draft estimates for 2019/20, the pages relevant to the HRA are 
appended to this report. 

 

2.5 The budget has been prepared to maintain council homes to a high standard with a 
comprehensive planned programme of expenditure, adaptations and routine repairs.  The 
2019/20 draft budget maintains significant sums for: 

 

 Major repairs totalling £4.4m covering new doors, boilers, kitchens and bathrooms, 
including change of tenancy expenditure, replacement of wooden fascias with uPVC 
and roof replacements. 
 

 Day to day repairs, programme maintenance and one off works totalling £4.5m. 
 

2.6 Rents have been decreased by 1% in line with legislation giving an estimated rental income 
from dwellings of £17.1m, with other income including garage rents adding a further £1m in 
income.  
 

2.7 The draft budget proposed generates a surplus of £1.154m in 2019/20.  This sum is then 
used to help finance the purchase of properties, continuing with the £5m annual investment 
programme (£3.5m from reserves/surplus and £1.5m from RTB receipts).  
 

2.8 The draft budget excludes a £1.9m principle loan repayment scheduled for 2019/20 and 
assumes this is refinanced allowing the generated surplus in 2019/20 to be used to support 
new acquisitions, this will leave the level of debt in the HRA at the same level of £80.6m.   
 

2.9 The HRA Balance is maintained within the adopted range of £2.1m and £3.1m, being 
projected to be retained £3.1m level at the end of 2019/20.  There is an additional £1.6m 
being held in the HRA debt Volatility Fund which remains unchanged.   
 

 

 
Budget Strategy for future years 

 
 
2.10 The HRA Business plan needs refreshing as outlined in 2.1 above to ensure properties can 

 be maintained at a high standard whilst investing in new properties and keeping the HRA 
 Reserves within the adopted levels.  This is currently being achieved.  

 
 
 
 

Agenda page 42



 
 
 

3 HRA Capital Programme 
 

3.1 The Council’s Capital Programme includes items that expenditure on assets owned by the 
HRA and this expenditure is financed by the HRA. 

 

3.2  An extract from the detailed budget book is appended to this report giving details of the 
HRA capital programme being proposed.  This totals a planned expenditure programme in 
2019/20 of £4.906m, this being funded from: 

 

£0.500m HRA Capital Receipts available 
£3.127m Major Repairs Reserve 
£1.279m Revenue/Depreciation 

  £4.906m 

Agenda page 43



EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL REVENUE & CAPITAL ESTIMATES 2019/20 

1 
 

 

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 

 

 

  

2018 Budget 2019 Budget Variance

£ £ £

1 INCOME 1 Gross Property Rent inc Garages 1 Gross Property Rents -17,259,560 -17,107,710 151,850

2 Garage Rents -463,130 -425,530 37,600

2 Other Income 1 Other Income -544,930 -542,120 2,810

1 INCOME Total -18,267,620 -18,075,360 192,260

2 EXPENDITURE 1 Repairs And Maintenance - General 1 Responsive Maintenance 1,754,440 1,754,170 -270

2 Annual Programmed Maintenance 947,000 947,000 0

2 Repairs And Maintenance - Special 1 Repairs And Maintenance - Special 1,302,400 1,298,350 -4,050

3 Supervision And Management 1 Supervision And Mgt General 4,030,340 4,032,725 2,385

2 Supervision And Mgt Special 1,597,110 1,727,490 130,380

4 Other Expenditure 1 Other Exp non Sewerage 235,960 226,120 -9,840

2 Sewerage 54,070 54,120 50

5 Capital Charges & Bad Debt Adjustment to Bad Debt Provision 0 0 0

Depreciation 1,312,250 3,230,540 1,918,290

2 EXPENDITURE Total 11,233,570 13,270,515 2,036,945

3 FINANCING 1 Interest on Balances -20,170 -49,730 -29,560

2 Loan Principal & Interest repayments 2,562,960 2,523,970 -38,990

3 Other -10 -1,159,940 -1,159,930

4 MIRS 3,094,440 2,336,080 -758,360

3 FINANCING Total 5,637,220 3,650,380 -1,986,840

Surplus/Defecit -1,396,830 -1,154,465 242,365

HRA BUDGET SUMMARY 2019 BY SERVICE LINE

Agenda page 44

athompson_1
Typewritten text
Item 09 annex 1



EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL REVENUE & CAPITAL ESTIMATES 2019/20 

2 
 

 

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 

 

2018 Budget 2019 Budget Variance

£ £ £

1 INCOME 1 Gross Property Rent inc Garages Contributions Only -Not Grants 0 0 0

Customer Receipts -17,722,690 -17,533,240 189,450

Premises Costs 0 0 0

2 Other Income Contributions Only -Not Grants -56,000 -9,000 47,000

Customer Receipts -488,930 -533,120 -44,190

Supplies & Services 0 0 0

1 INCOME Total -18,267,620 -18,075,360 192,260

2 EXPENDITURE 1 Repairs And Maintenance - General Contributions Only -Not Grants 0 0 0

Customer Receipts 0 0 0

Employment Costs 0 0 0

Internal Frontline Recharg Exp 540 270 -270

Premises Costs 2,700,900 2,700,900 0

Supplies & Services 0 0 0

Transport Costs 0 0 0

2 Repairs And Maintenance - Special Customer Receipts 0 0 0

Employment Costs 0 0 0

Internal Corporate Recharg Exp 50 0 -50

Premises Costs 1,287,180 1,286,180 -1,000

Supplies & Services 15,050 12,050 -3,000

Transport Costs 120 120 0

3 Supervision And Management Contributions Only -Not Grants -5,330 -5,330 0

Customer Receipts -21,030 -22,460 -1,430

Employment Costs 3,317,380 3,382,110 64,730

Internal Corporate Recharg Exp 1,062,440 1,200,870 138,430

Internal Frontline Recharg Exp 587,350 579,110 -8,240

Internal Rechg Income -454,640 -432,030 22,610

Other Income -480 -480 0

Premises Costs 525,670 505,900 -19,770

Supplies & Services 433,490 379,975 -53,515

Third Party Payment 0 0 0

Transport Costs 182,600 172,550 -10,050

4 Other Expenditure Contributions Only -Not Grants 0 0 0

Customer Receipts 0 -1,000 -1,000

Employment Costs 0 10,540 10,540

Government And Ola Grants 0 0 0

Internal Corporate Recharg Exp 3,450 0 -3,450

Internal Frontline Recharg Exp 26,470 35,120 8,650

Premises Costs 124,450 104,470 -19,980

Supplies & Services 125,890 118,940 -6,950

Transport Costs 9,770 12,170 2,400

5 Capital Charges & Bad Debt Capital Chg 1,312,250 3,230,540 1,918,290

Supplies & Services 0 0 0

2 EXPENDITURE Total 11,233,570 13,270,515 2,036,945

3 FINANCING 1 Interest on Balances Contributions Only -Not Grants 0 0 0

Interest Paid 0 5,000 5,000

Interest Received -20,170 -54,730 -34,560

2 Loan Principal & Interest repayments Interest Paid 2,562,960 2,523,970 -38,990

3 Other Capital Chg 0 -1,159,930 -1,159,930

Interest Received -10 -10 0

Other Income 0 0 0

4 MIRS Capital Chg 0 -2,070,610 -2,070,610

Employment Costs 0 0 0

Mirs Transfer To Bs Reserves -1,312,250 4,406,690 5,718,940

Other Income 4,406,690 0 -4,406,690

Repayment Of Principal 0 0 0

3 FINANCING Total 5,637,220 3,650,380 -1,986,840

Surplus/Defecit -1,396,830 -1,154,465 242,365

HRA BUDGET SUMMARY 2019 BY SUBJECTIVE SUMMARY

Agenda page 45



EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL REVENUE & CAPITAL ESTIMATES 2019/20 

3 
 

2018 Budget 2019 Budget Variance

Cost Centre £ £ £

1 INCOME 1 Gross Property Rent inc Garages 1 Gross Property Rents Rent Dwellings -17,259,560 -17,107,710 151,850

2 Garage Rents Rent From Garages -463,130 -425,530 37,600

2 Other Income 1 Other Income Hra Other Income -488,420 -496,250 -7,830

Sold Prop Recvy Of Costs -56,510 -45,870 10,640

1 INCOME Total -18,267,620 -18,075,360 192,260

2 EXPENDITURE 1 Repairs And Maintenance - General 1 Responsive Maintenance Blocked Drains 540 270 -270

Cavity Fill Problems 60,000 60,000 0

Day To Day Repairs 933,600 933,600 0

Drain Clearance 110,300 110,300 0

Drain Repair 50,000 50,000 0

Electrical Heating 100,000 100,000 0

Electrical Repairs 290,000 290,000 0

External Light 0 0 0

Fire 15 Bonners Causeway Pr049 0 0 0

Fire 17 Furzehill Pr038 0 0 0

Fire Northfield Pr071 0 0 0

Garage Repairs 30,000 30,000 0

Gas Repairs 0 0 0

New Boilers - Reactive 70,000 70,000 0

Pvcu Wndw Repairs 110,000 110,000 0

Rechargeable Works (Hsg) 0 0 0

Responsive Door Replacement 0 0 0

Storm Damage Ins Claim 0 0 0

Water Serv Renewal 0 0 0

Wndw Renewal 0 0 0

2 Annual Programmed Maintenance Automated Door Servicing 0 0 0

Clos-O-Mat Servicing 1,000 1,000 0

Communal Areas Mtce 37,000 37,000 0

Electrical Inspections 100,000 100,000 0

Emergency Light Testing 0 0 0

External Painting 25,000 25,000 0

Fire Alarms Test & Repair 20,000 20,000 0

Fire Extinguisher Testing 0 0 0

Gas Boilers Servicing 450,000 450,000 0

Interior Decoration 20,000 20,000 0

Legionella Testing - Hra Props 20,000 20,000 0

Lift Maintenance 85,000 85,000 0

Pat Testing 1,000 1,000 0

Service Rainwater Harvest Sys 8,000 8,000 0

Smoke & Co Alarms 0 0 0

Solid Fuel Servicing 180,000 180,000 0

2 Repairs And Maintenance - Special 1 Repairs And Maintenance - Special Asbestos Surveys 270,000 270,000 0

Asbestos Works 150,000 150,000 0

Chimney Repairs 30,000 30,000 0

Community Initiative Fund 25,000 25,000 0

Condensation 20,000 0 -20,000

Dampness Eradication 30,000 30,000 0

Energy Perf Certificates 20,000 20,000 0

Fence Prog 10,000 30,000 20,000

Flat Roof Repairs 10,000 10,000 0

Fra Building Works 120,050 50 -120,000

Fra Servicing 0 0 0

Fra Surveys 0 0 0

Fra Works 130,000 250,000 120,000

Fuel Efficiency Measures 120,000 120,000 0

Gutter Repair/Improvement 85,000 85,000 0

Handyperson Scheme 100,350 100,300 -50

Improvement Voucher Schm 10,000 10,000 0

Loft Insulation 10,000 10,000 0

Minor Schemes 10,000 10,000 0

Path Repairs 10,000 10,000 0

Sanctuary Schm 12,000 8,000 -4,000

Social Services Adaptations 100,000 100,000 0

Subsidence 30,000 30,000 0

3 Supervision And Management 1 Supervision And Mgt General Council House Sales 31,320 31,690 370

Housing Needs & Strategy 818,640 849,735 31,095

Hra Repairs And Mtce 20,370 26,940 6,570

Hra Supervision And Management 836,460 757,220 -79,240

Hsg Asset & Property Team 1,107,680 1,094,420 -13,260

Hsg Landlord Services 1,215,840 1,208,990 -6,850

Service Lead Housing 0 72,210 72,210

Strat Lead Hsg Health & Env 30 -8,480 -8,510

Tv Lic 0 0 0

2 Supervision And Mgt Special Anti Social Behaviour 13,000 13,000 0

Asw Procurement 15,000 15,000 0

Business Plan Review 5,000 5,000 0

Caretaking And Wndw Cleaning 410 410 0

Choice Based Lettings 10,000 10,000 0

Comml Areas Cleaning 70,160 146,560 76,400

Communal Areas Heating 26,080 26,600 520

Communal Areas Lighting 35,020 35,720 700

District Offices (Housing) 9,400 9,540 140

Estate Management 25,560 25,050 -510

Housing Tenants Survey 5,000 5,000 0

Hsg Comm Centres 40,880 38,010 -2,870

Maintenance Of Grounds 313,000 321,000 8,000

Mobile Support Officers 777,470 842,040 64,570

Mutual Exchanges 5,000 5,000 0

New Build Feasibility 15,000 15,000 0

Play Areas - Housing 35,320 35,520 200

Recommissioning Costs 5,000 5,000 0

Sewage Trtmnt Works 5,520 4,750 -770

Shared House St Andrews Rd Exm 6,000 6,000 0

Sheltered Schemes Equip Maint 101,000 85,000 -16,000

Stock Condition Survey 75,000 75,000 0

Targeted Families Programme 0 0 0

Tenants Conference 3,290 3,290 0

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT BUDGET DETAIL 2019
  

Agenda page 46



EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL REVENUE & CAPITAL ESTIMATES 2019/20 

4 
 

 

 

  

2018 Budget 2019 Budget Variance

Cost Centre £ £ £
HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT BUDGET DETAIL 2019

4 Other Expenditure 1 Other Exp non Sewerage 38 St Pauls Rd, Heathpark 5,130 5,100 -30

Best Value Housemark 15,000 15,000 0

Community Development Work 20,240 20,000 -240

Eviction Expenses 8,120 8,120 0

Gully Cleaning 10,000 10,000 0

Honiton Together 0 0 0

Housing Matters 0 0 0

Landscaping 5,000 5,000 0

Minor Management Schm 2,000 2,000 0

Pest Control Expenses 3,050 3,050 0

Removal Exp Downsizing 75,000 50,000 -25,000

Road Repairs 0 7,620 7,620

Rubbish Removal/House Clear 23,270 23,270 0

Signs On Estates 1,020 1,020 0

Storage 2,030 2,030 0

Tenant Participation 29,380 36,160 6,780

Tenant Scrutiny 5,250 5,250 0

Tree Felling And Planting 31,470 32,500 1,030

2 Sewerage All St Porch Cottages Small 280 290 10

All St Socks Smallridge 1 140 140 0

Broadhembury Brookside 10 210 210 0

Chardstock 1 And 2 The Parade 160 160 0

Chardstock 3 And 4 The Parade 210 210 0

Chardstock Cuckholds Pit 22 150 150 0

Coombepyne Rousdon 1 To 4 Peek 180 180 0

Farringdon Glebe Cottages 2 130 130 0

Hawkchurch Hawkmoor 31 190 190 0

Hawkchurch Red Pit 30 220 220 0

Hawkmoor Bore Hole 0 0 0

Kilmington Whitford Rd 35 280 290 10

Luppitt Fortfield Wick 15 200 200 0

Rewe Latchmore Green 41 200 200 0

Septic Tank Emptying 0 0 0

Sewerage Repairs And Mtce 51,060 51,080 20

Yarcombe Marsh Cottages 21 460 470 10

5 Capital Charges & Bad Debt Adjustment to Bad Debt Provision Prov For Bad Debts Increase 0 0 0

Depreciation Hra Depreciation Impairment 1,312,250 3,230,540 1,918,290

2 EXPENDITURE Total 11,233,570 13,270,515 2,036,945

3 FINANCING 1 Interest on Balances Interest On Balance -20,170 -49,730 -29,560

2 Loan Principal & Interest repayments Loan Repayments 2,562,960 2,523,970 -38,990

3 Other Hra Gain On Disposals 0 -3,161,910 -3,161,910

Hra Loss On Disposals 0 2,001,980 2,001,980

Int On Pension Scheme Liabilit 0 0 0

Interest Sale Of Cncl House -10 -10 0

4 MIRS Hra Acumulative Absences Mirs 0 0 0

Hra Mirs Gain To Cap Rcts 0 3,161,910 3,161,910

Hra Mirs Loss W/Out Asset Cos 0 -2,001,980 -2,001,980

Hra Mirs Reverse Depn Imp 0 -3,230,540 -3,230,540

Hra Tfer To Hra Earmarked Res 0 0 0

Ias 19 Pension Adj Hra 0 0 0

Mirs Mrprov Hra To Caa 0 0 0

Tfr To From Hra Balance 0 0 0

Tfr To Major Repairs Acc 3,094,440 4,406,690 1,312,250

3 FINANCING Total 5,637,220 3,650,380 -1,986,840

Surplus/Defecit -1,396,830 -1,154,465 242,365

Agenda page 47



EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL REVENUE & CAPITAL ESTIMATES 2019/20 

5 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

COMMUNITY PORTFOLIO - CAPITAL - HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 

Actual 
Total From  
2018/19 to  

2022/23 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 

£ £ £ £ £ £ 
1 85816 House in Multiple Occupation - Exmouth 30% RTB + 70% S.106 4,234 0 0 0 0 0 0 
2 85825 Honiton purchase 1a George Street 30% RTB + Bal HRA 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
3 85830 34 Ladymead Sidmouth RTB 30% Bal S.106 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
4 85831 30 Orchard Close Sidmouth RTB 30% Bal S.106 4,122 0 0 0 0 0 0 
5 85832 4 Roseway Exmouth RTB 30% Bal S.106 9,173 0 0 0 0 0 0 
6 85833 84 Fraser Road Exmouth RTB 30% Bal S.106 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
7 85834 212 Manstone Ave Sidmouth RTB 30% Bal S.106 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
8 85835 52 Ladymead Sidmouth RTB 30% Bal S.106 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
9 85836 103 Manstone Ave Sidmouth RTB 30% Bal S.106 5,483 0 0 0 0 0 0 
10 85838 156 Manstone Ave Sidmouth  RTB 30% Bal S.106 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
11 85839 25 Ladymead Sidmouth RTB 30% Bal S.106 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
12 85840 33 Ladymead Sidmouth RTB 30% Bal S.106 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

13 85841 18 Holly walk Exmouth   RTB 30% + HRA 60% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

14 85842 63 Birchwood Road  RTB 30% + HRA 70% 227,290 0 0 0 0 0 0 

15 85843 93 Byron Way, Exmouth 30% RTB + Bal HRA 192,594 0 0 0 0 0 0 

16 85844 68 Wordsworth Close, Exmouth 30% RTB + Bal HRA 195,700 0 0 0 0 0 0 

17 85845 31 Hollymount Close Exmouth 30% RTB + Bal HRA 193,944 0 0 0 0 0 0 

18 85846  18 Buttercup Close Seaton 30% RTB + Bal HRA 188,694 0 0 0 0 0 0 

19 85847 60 Manstone Ave Sidmouth 30% RTB Bal HRA 196,050 0 0 0 0 0 0 
20 85848 33 Orchard Sidford 30%  RTB Bal HRA 156,082 0 0 0 0 0 0 
21 85849 21 Village Close Exmouth 30%  RTB Bal HRA 140,341 0 0 0 0 0 0 
22 85850 Purchase Plot 331 Cloakham Axm 222,982 0 0 0 0 0 0 
23 85851 Purchase Plot 332 Cloakham Axm 177,159 0 0 0 0 0 0 
24 85852 Purchase Plot 333 Cloakham Axm 176,956 0 0 0 0 0 0 
25 85853 Purchase Plot 334 Cloakham Axm 223,990 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Line 
Cost  

Centre 

5 YEAR PROGRAMME 
Project 

A
genda page 48



EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL REVENUE & CAPITAL ESTIMATES 2019/20 

6 
 

 

  

26 85854 Purchase 4 Tracey View Honiton 213,934 0 0 0 0 0 0

27 85855 Purchase 62 Byron Way, Exmouth 192,906 0 0 0 0 0 0

28 85856 Purchase 34 Wordsworth Close Exmt 187,650 0 0 0 0 0 0

29 85857 Purchase12 Blackmore Crt Exmth 119,774 0 0 0 0 0 0

28 85858 Purchase 22 Mountain Clos Exmt 135,324 0 0 0 0 0 0

29 85859 Purchase 15 Dukes Crescent Exm 171,900 0 0 0 0 0 0

30 85860 Purchase 56 Dukes Crescent Exm 173,475 0 0 0 0 0 0

31 85861 Purchase 5 Palm Close Exmouth 198,150 0 0 0 0 0 0

32 85862 Purchase 15 Keats Close Exmth 200,835 0 0 0 0 0 0

33 85863 Purchase 16 Shipley Road 179,690 0 0 0 0 0 0

34 85864 31 Churchill Rise Axminster 220,342 0 0 0 0 0 0

35 85865 33 Churchill Rise Axminster 179,582 0 0 0 0 0 0

36 85866 35 Churchill Rise Axminster 179,542 0 0 0 0 0 0

37 85867 37 Churchill Rise Axminster 221,008 0 0 0 0 0 0

38 85872 12 Whitton Court Sidmouth 126,713 0 0 0 0 0 0

39 85873 14 Cunningham Rd Exmouth 216,514 0 0 0 0 0 0

40 85874 66 Chestnut Way Honiton 596 0 0 0 0 0 0

41 85875 4 Keats Close Exmouth 596 0 0 0 0 0 0

42 85876 2 Elmdale Marley Road Exmouth 425 0 0 0 0 0 0

43 85877 52 Shand Park Axminster 596 0 0 0 0 0 0

44 85878 9 Buttercup Close Seaton 596 0 0 0 0 0 0

45 85879 148 Salterton Road Exmouth 425 0 0 0 0 0 0

46 85880 26 Orchard Close Sidford 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

47 85881 5 Somerville Close Exmouth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

48 85882 71 Wordsworth Close Exmouth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

49 85883 28 Churchill Close Exmouth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

50 85884 9 Primrose Way Seaton 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

51 85885 4 Evett Close Exmouth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

52 85886 17 Roseway Exmouth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

53 85887 HMO 1 Morton Way Exmouth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

54 85888 5 Whitton Court Sidmouth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

55 CHRAFF HRA Affordable Housing 5,235,369 0 0 0 0 0 0

A
genda page 49



EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL REVENUE & CAPITAL ESTIMATES 2019/20 

7 
 

 

56 85823 Purchase Exebank & Danby Cash funded 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

57 85824 Rebuild 24-26 Normandy Close x 1/3 x 30% Bal HRA 2015/16 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

58 85703 HRA Housing System 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

59 CHRAOT HRA Housing Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

60

61 65380 Re-Roofing 0 335,000 0 0 0 0 335,000

62 85902 Major improvement/extension 81,446 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 750,000

63 85903 Off street car parking 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

64 85904 Remodelling of Sheltered Schemes 62,452 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 500,000

65 85901 Seaton Refurbishment Manor Close Seaton 11,021 0 0 0 0 0 0

66 85909 Alteration Phear Avenue Exmt 65,688 0 0 0 0 0 0

67 85213 Social Service Adaptations 387,181 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 1,250,000

68 CHSGHG HRA Housing 607,788 835,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 2,835,000

69 68100 Central Heating Replacement 19,024 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 100,000

70 68126 Cot Heating replacement 523 0 0 0 0 0 0

71 68102 Electrical Updating 21,344 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 1,500,000

72 68116 COT: Update Electrics 6,233 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 50,000

73 68103 Replacement Bathrooms 171,626 210,000 210,000 210,000 210,000 210,000 1,050,000

74 68124 Cot Bathrooms 59,037 70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 350,000

75 68105 Roofing Renewal 123,715 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 750,000

76 68106 PVCu Fascia Replacement 350,324 320,000 320,000 320,000 320,000 320,000 1,600,000

77 68107 Replacement Kitchens 197,645 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 1,750,000

78 68123 Cot Kitchens 264,493 190,000 190,000 190,000 190,000 190,000 950,000

79 68108 Replacement Doors 314,131 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 500,000

80 68125 Cot doors (2,125) 0 0 0 0 0 0

81 68130 Fire Stopping Work on COT 286 0 0 0 0 0 0

82 68109 Major structural repairs 37,613 0 0 0 0 0 0

83 68120 Gas Boiler Replacement 558,383 800,000 800,000 800,000 800,000 800,000 4,000,000

84 68127 Cot new boilers 33,195 0 0 0 0 0 0

85 68122 Change of Tenancy Expenditure 2,159,456 1,886,000 1,886,000 1,886,000 1,886,000 1,886,000 9,430,000

86 MJRREP HRA Major Repairs 4,314,902 4,406,000 4,406,000 4,406,000 4,406,000 4,406,000 22,030,000

87 GROSS EXPENDITURE 10,158,059 5,241,000 4,906,000 4,906,000 4,906,000 4,906,000 24,865,000

A
genda page 50



EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL REVENUE & CAPITAL ESTIMATES 2019/20 

8 
 

 

  

88 85213 Social Service Adaptations contribution 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

89 85703 HRA Housing System 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

90 85902 Major improvement/extension 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

91 68122 Change of Tenancy Expenditure 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

92 EXTERNAL FUNDING 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

93 NET EXPENDITURE 10,158,059 5,241,000 4,906,000 4,906,000 4,906,000 4,906,000 24,865,000

A
genda page 51



EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL REVENUE & CAPITAL ESTIMATES 2019/20 

9 
 

 

Capital Programme Financing 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

£ £ £ £ £

Net Expenditure to be Financed (GF & HRA) 21,511,250 9,818,959 5,413,500 5,364,300 5,104,300

Adjust for unused income from grants/contributions:

Disabled facility grants unspent to reserve

LED loan: Exmouth Leisue Centre enhancement programme

21,511,250 9,818,959 5,413,500 5,364,300 5,104,300

Financing:

General Fund Capital Receipts (200,000) (8,329,750) (100,000) (100,000) (100,000)

PWLB Science park (1,500,000)

PWLB loan - Beer CLT (170,000) (980,000)

PWLB loan - Enterprise Zone - Park & Change (1,355,000)

Net (internal borrowing)  / Transfer to Capital Reserves balance (12,356,865) 7,943,611 814,516 684,229 902,700

GF Loans/Internal Borrowing (14,026,865) 5,608,611 814,516 684,229 902,700

Section 106 Funding (60,000) 0 0 0 0

GF Grants 0 0 0 0 0

Use of GF Capital Project reserves 0 (48,000) 0 0 0

GF Revenue Contributions to Capital Funding 0 0 0 0 0

HRA funding (4,906,000) (4,906,000) (4,906,000) (4,906,000) (4,906,000)

New Homes Bonus Funding (2,318,385) (2,143,820) (1,222,016) (1,042,529) (1,001,000)

(Use of) /contribution to capital reserve

Total Funding (21,511,250) (9,818,959) (5,413,500) (5,364,300) (5,104,300)

Shortfall / (Surplus) 0 0 0 0 0

A
genda page 52



Report to: Housing Review Board 

 

Date of Meeting: 24 January 2019 

Public Document: Yes 

Exemption: None 

Review date for 
release 

  

 

Agenda item: 10 

Subject: Integrated Asset Management Contract Update 

Purpose of report: This report updates members on progress made on the procurement of 
the Integrated Asset Management Contract and provides some detail 
on the mobilisation plan for the new service 

Recommendation: 1. To note the award of the Integrated Asset Management 
contract to Ian Williams Ltd and the start of the mobilisation 
process. 

 

Reason for 
recommendation: 

Regular reports to this board will be made to update members on the 
progress of mobilisation. 

Officer: Amy Gilbert-Jeans – Acting Housing Service Lead, ext. 2578 agilbert-
jeans@eastdevon.gov.uk  

Financial 
implications: 
 

The budget for 2019/20 as been based on current spending levels, 
work has been identified for the need to produce a refreshed business 
plan that can take into account the implications and expected cost 
reduction attributable to the new contract. 

Legal implications: There are no legal implications on which to comment. 

Equalities impact: Medium Impact 

We have involved tenants throughout the process through the Housing 
Review Board, tenants groups and as part of the evaluation process. 
We will continue to involve tenants through mobilisation. 

Risk: Medium Risk 

A Risk register has been used throughout the project and will continue 
to be used through mobilisation. 

Links to background 
information: 

http://eastdevon.gov.uk/media/2602364/combined-hrb-agenda-
200918.pdf (Item 11) 
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/media/2532954/combined-hrb-agenda-
210618.pdf (Item 13) 
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/media/2317941/combined-hrb-agenda- 
110118.pdf (item 11) 
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/media/1973368/combined-hrb-agenda- 
120117.pdf (item 14 and 15) 
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/media/2022994/combined-hrb-agenda- 
090317.pdf (item 11) 
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/media/2140883/combined-hrb-agenda- 
150617.pdf (item 9) 

Agenda page 53

Agenda Item 10

mailto:agilbert-jeans@eastdevon.gov.uk
mailto:agilbert-jeans@eastdevon.gov.uk
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/media/2602364/combined-hrb-agenda-200918.pdf
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/media/2602364/combined-hrb-agenda-200918.pdf
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/media/2532954/combined-hrb-agenda-210618.pdf
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/media/2532954/combined-hrb-agenda-210618.pdf
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/media/2317941/combined-hrb-agenda-110118.pdf
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/media/2317941/combined-hrb-agenda-110118.pdf
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/media/1973368/combined-hrb-agenda-120117.pdf
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/media/1973368/combined-hrb-agenda-120117.pdf
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/media/2022994/combined-hrb-agenda-090317.pdf
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/media/2022994/combined-hrb-agenda-090317.pdf
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/media/2140883/combined-hrb-agenda-150617.pdf
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/media/2140883/combined-hrb-agenda-150617.pdf


http://eastdevon.gov.uk/media/2197069/combined-hrb-agenda-
070917.pdf(item 10) 
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/media/2396042/combined-hrb-agenda-
080318.pdf (Item 12) 

Link to Council Plan: Encouraging Communities to be outstanding 

 

1 Background 

  

1.1 The Board has received previous detailed reports over the last 21 months on progress 
being made with renewing the Integrated Asset Management Contract (detailed in the links 
section above) 
 

1.2 This report outlines the progress that has been made since September 2018 and provides 
details of the initial mobilisation planning that has taken place. 
 

2 Key steps 

 

2.1 At the time of the previous HRB report (September 2018) approval had already been 
sought to approve the appointment of the highest scoring bidder. This was subject to there 
being:  

 no negative and significant feedback from leaseholders 

 no legal challenge from any unsuccessful bidders 
 

2.2 No such feedback or challenge was received, putting us in a position to formally award the 
contract to our preferred bidder, Ian Williams Ltd. 
 

2.3 In our original procurement timetable, it was anticipated that we would formally award the 
contract to our preferred bidder at the end of September with a view to the new service 
commencing on 1st February 2019. However, we were approached by both of our current 
contractors to dispute the legality of the length of the extension awarded to them.  
 

2.4 We had previously agreed with both our incumbent providers to extend their existing 
contracts for 6 months, terminating at the end of January 2019. This was in line with the 
procurement timetable. Our contractors argued that any extension should be for a full year. 
 

2.5 Having reviewed our existing contract, we agreed that the terms of the contract had been 
misinterpreted and have therefore offered the full year extension to both incumbents. The 
result of this is that the new contract will not now commence until 1st July 2019.  
 

2.6 Although it is disappointing that we have had to delay the start of the new contract, there 
are a number of benefits to having a longer period to prepare for it.  

 

 Ian Williams had expressed concerns at starting the new contract in February 2019; the 

winter is traditionally a busier time for repairs. A summer start date is preferable for both 

parties as this will allow the new service to “bed in” through a period of lower demand, 

potentially allowing more time for staff transferring across from our incumbent providers 

to be trained to work in the new environment, and for existing Ian Williams staff to 

familiarise themselves with the district and the demands of the new service. 

 

 We are lengthening the mobilisation period from 4 months to closer to 7 months. This 

will allow more time for us to set up the IT integration that will form the bedrock of the 

Agenda page 54

http://eastdevon.gov.uk/media/2197069/combined-hrb-agenda-070917.pdf
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/media/2197069/combined-hrb-agenda-070917.pdf
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/media/2396042/combined-hrb-agenda-080318.pdf
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/media/2396042/combined-hrb-agenda-080318.pdf


new service. This has been highlighted as one of the main risks associated with 

mobilisation, so having more time to work on this aspect is welcome. 

 
2.7 As well as the positives, there are risks that a prolonged transition can bring. The 

performance of our incumbent providers will be strictly monitored to ensure that the 

standard of delivery remains high.  

 

2.8 There are also concerns that a number of staff who are due to transfer to the new service 

through TUPE may look to move to new jobs. This could impact both Ian Williams, in terms 

of additional recruitment requirements, and our incumbents in terms of maintaining service 

delivery.  

 
2.9 We will work with all parties to mitigate these risks. 

 

3 New contract mobilisation 

 

3.1 We held an initial pre-mobilisation workshop on 1st November 2018. The aim of this 
workshop was to set out the broad framework for mobilisation as well as to provide an 
opportunity for the mobilisation and management teams from Ian Williams Ltd to meet with 
staff and stakeholders from across the EDDC housing service. 
 

3.2 A full report on the pre-mobilisation workshop has been provided as Annex 1 to this report. 
 

3.3 On 10th December the Mobilisation Steering Group held their inaugural meeting to formally 
begin the mobilisation process. This meeting confirmed the number and membership of the 
sub-groups that will focus on specific aspects of mobilisation.  
 

3.4 Tenants will be represented through the whole group structure, not only on the steering 
group itself, but also on two of the sub groups, focusing on communications and social 
value. 
 

3.5 The Communications Group will, amongst other tasks create a firm plan to ensure that 
tenants are aware of how the mobilisation is progressing and what the new service will look 
like. Details of this are in the development phase, but will include roadshows across the 
district and drop in’s to sheltered blocks, recognising that we need to ensure our more 
vulnerable residents are aware of changes taking place. 
 

3.6 Regular attendance at Tenant Involvement Forums to provide updates will continue; Amy 
Gilbert-Jeans is due to attend the January meeting for this purpose.  
 

3.7 It was also identified that EDDC operational staff should undertake initial training on the 
new contract model before the sub group work begins. This is scheduled to take place on 
16th January 2019. 
 

3.8 Following this training, two full day workshops will be run to set out the Repairs and Voids 
Processes, and out of these workshops the full mobilisation plan, and responsibilities for 
each sub group will be determined. 
 

3.9 The full mobilisation plan, with firm milestones in place will be presented to members at the 
March meeting of the Housing Review Board. 
 
 

Agenda page 55



    
 
 

Page 1 of 19 

 

Pre Mobilisation Workshop for Procurement of 
Integrated Asset Management Model  

For 

East Devon District Council with Ian Williams 
1st November 2018 

At 

Exmouth Town Hall, St Andrews Road, Exmouth EX8 1AW 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: 

Mathew Baxter 
Managing Director  

echelon Consultancy Limited 
echelon House 
219a Hatfield Road 
St Albans 
Herts  
AL1 4TB 
Ph: 01707 339800 
Mob: 07989 325887 
Email: mathew@echelonconsultancy.co.uk 
www.echelonconsultancy.co.uk   

Agenda page 56

mailto:mathew@echelonconsultancy.co.uk
http://www.echelonconsultancy.co.uk/
athompson_2
Typewritten text
Item 10 - Annex 1



    
 
 

Page 2 of 19 

Contents 

 
1 Executive Summary 3 

2 Workshop Report 4 

2.1 Introduction to the Day 4 

2.2 Participant Introductions 4 

2.3 Workshop Objectives 5 

2.4 Case Study and Previous Work 6 

2.5 Reshaping Asset Management 8 

2.6 Individual group work 9 

2.7 Review of key documents 11 

2.8 First draft of groups followed by brief group activity 12 

3 Risk identification and Objective Review 17 

Appendices 18 

Appendix A: Workshop Participants 18 

Appendix B: Workshop Feedback 19 

 

  

Agenda page 57



    
 
 

Page 3 of 19 

1 Executive Summary 
 
1.1.1 This workshop acted as an initial start-up event for the mobilisation of the 

Integrated Asset Management Model contract which will commence in the 
next few weeks. 

1.1.2 As well as starting to look into the processes available for the mobilisation 
process , this workshop also helped to identify the aspirations of both internal 
and external stakeholders of East Devon and Ian Williams in the delivery of 
the Integrated Asset Management contract.   

1.1.3 All the objectives of the workshop were met, and it was felt by all that the 
workshop provided a good starting point for the mobilisation process. 

Agenda page 58



    
 
 

Page 4 of 19 

2 Workshop Report 
 
2.1 Introduction to the Day 

2.1.1 Mathew Baxter gave an introduction to the event summarised as follows: 

• Mathew explained how important the mobilisation stages are. Despite 
this, he emphasised that today’s purpose was an introduction and more 
of an insight into what the future holds, rather than formal role allocation. 
Also running through the day’s agenda explaining the purpose of each 
part of the day.  

 
• Mathew also explained that this workshop was in place to start the long-

term mobilisation and that there would be more of these going forward, 
where people would be invited to their respective meetings dependant 
on their roles.  

 

2.1.2 John Golding, Strategic Lead from EDDC, gave his formal introduction 
summarised as follows: 

• John described the day as a good opportunity to start integrating with 
the Ian Williams team whilst getting to know each other. John outlined 
that EDDC looked at alternative options and processes, but he felt this 
procurement process has allowed them to be bespoke and look at the 
finer details.  
 

• John emphasised that his team are aiming for a smooth transition, but 
also that this must be practical and fair for the tenants, which they don’t 
want to lose sight of. In conclusion to his introduction, John added that 
he wanted today to set the tone of the process going forward, adding 
that he was confident in the resources within his team and those of Ian 
Williams and Echelon.  

2.2 Participant Introductions 

2.2.1 Mathew Baxter encouraged everyone to fully participate in today’s workshop, 
put forward their specific views and challenge anything they didn’t agree with. 
The solutions devised today will help shape the mobilisation in the future.  

2.2.2 The delegates introduced themselves to the workshop as follows: 

• Who are you? 
• What is your role? 
• What do you want to achieve today? 

Agenda page 59



    
 
 

Page 5 of 19 

2.2.3 A list of workshop participants and their contact details are attached in 
Appendix A 

2.2.4 Personal objectives for the day identified by the delegates included the 
following: 

• Meet the Ian Williams team and get a feel for how they start to work in 
partnership; 

• Work out how Ian Williams work and what they strive for;  
• Gain clarity on the mobilisation period ; 
• Get a feel for collaborative working and start as they mean to go on; 
• Gain understanding of East Devon District Council’s cultures and values 

and see how Ian Williams can buy into them; 
• Make sure everyone shows the focus required into TUPE & IT, as they 

are regarded as big risks; 
• Get an idea of how EDDC need to set up and how the allocations team 

need to set themselves up for the voids process;  
• Understand the contract in more detail – in particular the KPI’s;  
• Put names to faces, build relationships and start to understand how 

EDDC’s IT works; and 
• Create the basics of collaborative working going forward, in particular 

look into IT as this can be fundamental to the mobilisation period as well 
as the contract as a whole.  

2.2.5 The feedback of the workshop regarding people’s personal objectives will be 
attached in the Appendices section in Appendix B 

2.2.6 Following on from outlining objectives, the whole group participated in the 
‘boat rescue’ team building exercise 

2.3 Workshop Objectives 

2.3.1 The aims of the workshop were to engage the EDDC and Ian Williams team 
in: 

• Meet and establish a mobilisation team 
• Establish roles and responsibilities for the mobilisation and the future 

& review mobilisation tools 
• Review and summary of the procurement process 
• Review key components of the successful Service Providers Offer 
• Develop mutual objectives 
• Agree future Core Group and sub-group structures 
• Develop mobilisation action plan and timelines 
• Risk review – identify key risks and mitigating actions 

 
 

Agenda page 60



    
 
 

Page 6 of 19 

2.3.2 These objectives, and those identified by the delegates, were reviewed at the 
end of the workshop and it was agreed that they had been met. Feedback can 
be viewed in Appendix B. 

2.4 Case Study and Previous Work  

2.4.1 Mathew referred to a previous case study of BPHA & Ian Williams which 
Echelon procured a few years ago. There was a presentation on the 
mobilisation stages and Mathew drew comparisons and similarities between 
that project and the current collective work between EDDC and Ian Williams. 
The presentation is also attached in the email.  

2.4.2 The comparisons and analysis were surrounding Bedford’s Asset 
Management Services, their success factors and their areas to consider for 
improvement.  

2.4.3 Following on from that the group looked at the journey so far during the 
procurement of East Devon District Council’s Asset Management. In 
Summary: 

• OJEU Issued 19th February 2018 
• 7 SQ’s Received (Selection Questionnaires) 
• All Shortlisted to ISDS (Invitation to Submit Detailed Solution)  
• 3 Bidders taken through to CPN process  
• ISFT Issued and Evaluated (Invitation to Submit Final Tender) 
• Ian Williams scored 92.13% (52.92% Quality/ Cost 39.21%) 
• Cost differential less than 2% between all 3 bidders 
• Leaseholder and Standstill Periods complete 
• Contract Award not yet place 

 
2.4.4 Mathew then reviewed some of the key points that were analysed 15 months 

ago at the Hearts & Minds workshop.  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda page 61



    
 
 

Page 7 of 19 

 
2.4.5 The group also looked at what the residents prioritised at the time of the 

workshop.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

No.  Service Improvement 
1 Flexible appointments to be offered at first point of contact 

2 Flexible communications with online reporting 

3 Introduction of Freephone number 

4 Encourage feedback on service 

5 Introduce reminders and call-a heads 

6 Joint branding of service provider 

7 Develop a proactive service 

8 Utilise a multi-skilled workforce 

9 Better supervision of operatives 

10 More post inspections/quality control 

Agenda page 62



    
 
 

Page 8 of 19 

2.5 Reshaping Asset Management  

2.5.1 Mathew presented the follow points surrounding asset management:  

• Understanding the needs of the stock and the customers 
• How much does each visit cost? 
• Is there such a thing as an ‘average’ property? 
• Use of Complete Property Service approach? 
• Linking reactive and planned maintenance  
• Why does the sector spend so much on voids? 
• Incentivising Service Provider to drive down cost? 
• Only real way to drive down cost and increase satisfaction is to reduce 

number of visits – Proactive thinking rather than Reactive thinking 

2.5.2 Sample provided (from United Welsh) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

Agenda page 63



    
 
 

Page 9 of 19 

2.6 Individual group work  

2.6.1 For this part of the session Mathew asked the attendees to split into Ian 
Williams and East Devon District council and come up with 10-15 ‘refresh and 
review’ ideas for each group: 

2.6.2 The 10 ideas that Ian Williams came up with and then further elaborated on 
were: 

1. Happy client 
2. Happy customer 
3. Collaborative working 
4. Engaged employees 
5. ‘Invisible’ IT 
6. Cost efficiency over lifetime 
7. Innovation and Passion shown throughout the contract 
8. Model contract 
9. Profitable  
10. Paid on time  

2.6.3 When expanding on their points they explained what the criteria for a happy 
working relationship was. This was things such as honesty and clarity when 
addressing issues. Being time efficient throughout the process and meeting 
the expectations of EDDC. Ian Williams expressed their desire for 
collaborative working on every level, from top to bottom of the tired structure. 
They want to be TUPE considerate of any new members of staff and educate 
them on Ian Williams’ culture and values. Ian Williams expressed their views 
on looking into various commercial models, as they want open dialogue with 
EDDC throughout the contract.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ian Williams Team  

Agenda page 64



    
 
 

Page 10 of 19 

2.6.4  The 14 ideas that East Devon District Council came up with and then further 
elaborated on were: 

• High customer service and satisfaction  
• Communication and inter team 
• That Ian Williams are trustworthy, honest and open 
• Integrated working and learning about each other – EDDC, IW and 

residents  
• Flexibility, lessons learnt from feedback (data/reviews/input) 
• Collaboration and colocation – 1 team  
• Clear structures 
• ICT systems interface 
• Compliance 
• Consistency and resilience when dealing with good or bad news (all 

parties) 
• Change management expectations 
• Personal development opportunities 
• Value for money and cost efficiency  
• Maintain or improve standards together 

 
2.6.5 EDDC expressed their desire for happy residents, as happy residents will 

make them happy. Communication is key to EDDC, they want honesty and 
clarity throughout the entire hierarchy. They want honesty and integrity when 
mistakes are made, with reactive responses to problems, whether it be on 
their behalf or Ian Williams’.  

2.6.6 Interactive working comes with learning from an EDDC perspective, they want 
to learn as much as possible about Ian Williams and vice versa. A ‘1 working 
team’ image is their goal, they would also like to gain a clear understanding of 
who works with who in all roles across the project.  

 

 

 

 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 The EDDC Team 

Agenda page 65



    
 
 

Page 11 of 19 

Strategic Core Group

ICT Commercial Marketing & 
Communication

Operations Group

Specialist Sub Groups

2.7 Review of key documents 

2.7.1 Mathew ran the group through some key documents and what they will consist 
of. These will be reviewed further in the future in more detail with the correct 
group.  

2.7.2 The group looked at the potential structure chart and collectively came up with 
some potential sub groups for when the contract is up and running. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.7.3 Proposed mobilisation structure (initial) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.7.4 It was agreed that the structure would broadly follow the structure but with the 
addition of  Steering Group that will sit between SCG and Operations, made 
up of the chairs of each group and also a operational delivery group under the 
operations group. 

Agenda page 66



    
 
 

Page 12 of 19 

2.8 First draft of groups followed by brief group activity 

2.8.1 After lunch the group gave some though to the possible groups going forward, 
allocating people into their appropriate teams, even though none of these 
suggestions remain official as of yet, just guidelines.  

2.8.2 Chairs for each group are identified with a ©. 

Operations: 

East Devon District Council Ian Williams 

Alex Craig (S) 

Denise © Claire Harris 

Amy Stephen 

Sue  TBC 

Graham  TBC 

Kerry  

Peter (T)  

Tracy  

Tim  

 

ICT: 

© Kerry Stephen 

Simon Mike 

Natalie  

Rob  

 

 

 

 

Agenda page 67



    
 
 

Page 13 of 19 

Commercial: 

Rob Craig 

Amy Paul 

Alex +QS 

Natalie +Branch Manager 

© Denise  

Graham  

 

Social Value: 

Tenant Rep Craig 

Sue Claire 

Community Development Rep Ian Williams Academy 

Jim Elson Ian Williams Foundation 

Denise  

Management Support Officer  

 

 

 

 

      Commercial Group 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda page 68



    
 
 

Page 14 of 19 

Delivery Group: 

Denise Craig 

Tracy Claire 

© Alex Business Manager 

Repairs Advisor TUPE? 

Repairs Surveyor TBC 

Michelle  

Graham  

MSO  

Tenant Rep  

 

Communication: 

Comms team rep Craig 

© Denise Claire 

Tenant rep TBC 

Amy TBC 

Mobile Support Office TBC 

Repairs Advisor  

Maintenance Supervisor  

Councillor Stott  

 

 

 

 

Agenda page 69



    
 
 

Page 15 of 19 

2.8.3 Given that some people that were included in the provisional groups were not 
in attendance at the workshop, the group split into their small groups where 
possible. Each group looked at what the mobilisation period would consist of 
from their perspective, as well as how they could address any potential 
problems moving forward and just general areas of discussion 

Commercial group ‘The Deal’: 

1. The contract – Summary & Distribution as well as spreading 
understanding for the model – insert training where required 

2. Areas of risk and how they can be countered 
3. Invoicing and Accounting – Definition of prompt payment, review of cost 

efficiency, process for clarifications – variations 
4. KPI’s – develop definition and understanding, loom at evaluation and 

review of KPI’s, link to payment process 
5. MI – Define repairs needed for processes, open book review, 

provisions of info to teams, issues around where data sits and how to 
access it, stock condition data components, adaptations maximising 
collection, informed decisions. 

IT :  

1. Interface layout / mapping / definition  
2. Who raises job / web services 
3. Flow map process 
4. Common Terminology 
5. Variations 
6. Pricing 
7. Location / Tenant export 
8. Clear directive from operations 
9. Skype meetings 
10. IT down – Action Plan 
11. GDPR 
12. Implementing new process onto current OH and testing it 
13. Testing time? 
14. Working in parallel with OCD and new process on OH  
15. Audit 

 

 

 

 

Agenda page 70



    
 
 

Page 16 of 19 

             Operational Delivery: 

1. Process Mapping 
2. Recalls 
3. Repairs 
4. Mutual Exchange 
5. Scheme for days sheltered accommodation  
6. Voids 
7. Variations – Inclusions / Exclusions – PPP > SOR – PPV > SOR 
8. Multiple Repairs 
9. Recharges 
10. Contingency planning – vulnerable residents 
11. Communications 
12. Property MOTS – components replacement 
13. Compliance – Health & Safety / Smoke alarms  
14. Clarification of training / Expectation of roles – Surveyor 
15. Customer Calls – Scheduling 
16. Handypersons  

 

Agenda page 71



    
 
 

Page 17 of 19 

3 Risk identification and Objective Review 
 

3.1.1 The group identified potential risks that they could be exposed to throughout 
the mobilisation period. They were as follows: 

• Reliance on IT working as envisaged  
• Resourcing – business as usual must carry on  
• Clarity on roles and responsibilities through mobilisation 
• Tenant demand on new service 
• Ian Williams struggle to recruit 
• Timescales 
• Disruption from incumbent contractors 
• Ian Williams premises not ready on time 
• Contract not officially signed 
•  Ian Williams not having fleet supplied and branded 
•  TUPE information and transition in general – consultation with staff 
•  Cultural and value alignment (TUPE staff too) 
•  Contractor could suffer from commercial difficulties in a general 

perspective, not solely to the contract with EDDC 
•  Communication and behaviours  

3.1.2 The workshop concluded after the risk analysis. The group gave a summary 
of their individual experiences of the day and they were as summarised in 
Appendix B.  

 

 

 

Agenda page 72



    
 
 

Page 18 of 19 

Appendices 
 
Appendix A: Workshop Participants 

Name Role Org. Telephone E-Mail 
Mathew Baxter Managing Director Echelon 01707 339800 mathew@echelonconsultancy.co.uk 
Ellis Hanks Finance Assistant Echelon 01707 339800 ellis@echelonconsultancy.co.uk 
Stephen Lye IT Project Manager IW  Stephen.lye@ianwilliams.co.uk 

Amy Gilbert-Jeans Acting Housing 
Service Lead EDDC  Agilbert-jeans@eastdevon.gov.uk 

Michelle Davidson Compliance 
Surveyor  EDDC  mdavidson@eastdevon.gov.uk 

 

Kerry Spittle Housing Systems 
Manager EDDC  Kspittle@eastdevon.gov.uk 

Tim Laurence-
Othen Project Officer EDDC  Tlaurence-othen@eastdevon.gov.uk 

Natalie Brown Information Officer EDDC  Nabrown@eastdevon.gov.uk 
Mike Dunstan IT Manager IW  Mike.Dunstan@ianwilliams.co.uk 
Simon Landfear Strata Strata  Simon-landfear@strata.solutions 

Steve Mcnaughton Mobile Support 
Officer EDDC 01395 227 884 smcnaughton@eastdevon.gov.uk 

 

Paul Manning Maintenance 
Surveyor EDDC 07813 343 829 pmanning@eastdevon.gov.uk 

Della Kelly Housing Repairs 
Advisors EDDC 07817 394 991 dkelly@eastdevon.gov.uk 

Colin Rowland Surveyor EDDC 07875 284 847 crowland@eastdevon.gov.uk 
Kate Green General Manager IW 07736 728 545 Kate.green@ianwilliams.co.uk 

Denise Reeves Property Asset 
Manager EDDC 07817 394 991 dreeves@eastdevon.gov.uk 

Andrew Mitchell Housing Needs & 
Strategy Manager EDDC 01395 517 469 Amitchell@eastdevon.gov.uk 

 
Tracy Humphrey  Allocations EDDC 01395 511 469 thumphrey@eastdevon.gov.uk 
Craig Jones General Manager  IW 07738 502 326 Craig.jones@ianwilliams.co.uk 

Sue Bewes  Landlord Services 
Manager EDDC 01395 514 551 sbewes@eastdevon.gov.uk 

Jim Elson Cabinet Member EDDC 01385 264 731 jelson@eastdevon.gov.uk 
Peter Sullivan  EDDC Tenant Rep EDDC 01395 515 033 pasully@outlook.com 

Alex Slattery  Senior Technical 
Officer EDDC 07813 343 844 aslattery@eastdevon.gov.uk 

Rob Ward Accountant  EDDC 07963 778 945 rob.ward@eastdevon.gov.uk 
John Golding Strategic Lead EDDC 01395 343 844 jgolding@eastdevon.gov.uk 

Jayne Cox  AM Operations 
Director IW 07979 548 403 Jayne.m.cox@ianwilliams.co.uk 

Pauline Stott  Councillor   0797 465 847 paulinestott@btinternet.co.uk 

Graham Baker  Senior Technical 
Officer EDDC 07875 638 919 gbaker@eastdevon.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda page 73

mailto:mathew@echelonconsultancy.co.uk
mailto:ellis@echelonconsultancy.co.uk
mailto:Stephen.lye@ianwilliams.co.uk
mailto:Agilbert-jeans@eastdevon.gov.uk
mailto:mdavidson@eastdevon.gov.uk
mailto:Kspittle@eastdevon.gov.uk
mailto:Tlaurence-othen@eastdevon.gov.uk
mailto:Nabrown@eastdevon.gov.uk
mailto:Mike.Dunstan@ianwilliams.co.uk
mailto:Simon-landfear@strata.solutions
mailto:smcnaughton@eastdevon.gov.uk
mailto:pmanning@eastdevon.gov.uk
mailto:dkelly@eastdevon.gov.uk
mailto:crowland@eastdevon.gov.uk
mailto:Kate.green@ianwilliams.co.uk
mailto:dreeves@eastdevon.gov.uk
mailto:Amitchell@eastdevon.gov.uk
mailto:thumphrey@eastdevon.gov.uk
mailto:Craig.jones@ianwilliams.gov.uk
mailto:sbewes@eastdevon.gov.uk
mailto:jelson@eastdevon.gov.uk
mailto:pasully@outlook.com
mailto:aslattery@eastdevon.gov.uk
mailto:rob.ward@eastdevon.gov.uk
mailto:jgolding@eastdevon.gov.uk
mailto:Jayne.m.cox@ianwilliams.co.uk
mailto:paulinestott@btinternet.co.uk
mailto:gbaker@eastdevon.gov.uk


    
 
 

Page 19 of 19 

Appendix B: Workshop Feedback 

Feedback provided regarding the workshop was as follows: 
 

• Got to know Ian Williams and East Devon District Council more and objectives 
were met 

• Enjoyable and interactive day, good balance of group work and mixed work  
• Multiple members of the group felt that they had got everything out of the session 

that they wanted  
• Knowledgeable day – learnt a lot about mobilisation process – time management 

proves key going forward 
• Very informative and educational day  
• Refreshing and reassuring to see the amount of enthusiasm shown as well as the 

positive approach to change. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda page 74



Report to: Housing Review Board 

 

Date of Meeting: 24 January 2019 

Public Document: Yes 

Exemption: None 

Review date for 
release 

None  

 

Agenda item: 11 

Subject: Universal Credit 

Purpose of report: This report sets out the latest information on the roll out of Universal 
Credit and the impact so far on our housing service. 

Recommendation: 
That the contents of the report informing the Board of the 

latest information on Universal Credit and the impact on EDDC 

be noted.  

 

Reason for 
recommendation: 

To update the board 

Officer: Sue Bewes  

Landlord Services Manager, sbewes@eastdevon.gov.uk  

Financial 
implications: 
 

There appear to be no direct financial implications arising from the 
report itself. 

Legal implications: There are no legal implications contained within the report. 

Equalities impact: Low Impact 

. 

Risk: High Risk 

There is the risk of reduced income to the HRA and of many tenants 

falling behind on their rent, which could lead to an increased number of 

evictions. 

Links to background 
information: 

. 

Link to Council Plan: Encouraging communities to be outstanding. 

 

Report in full 

1.0      Background  

  

1. Universal Credit (UC) was introduced into the East Devon area in July 2018. The first 
rollout was for the Eastern area of the District, followed by the West of the District in 
September.  
UC has been set up to provide one monthly payment for people who are looking for work 
or on a low income and has replaced:  

  

Agenda page 75

Agenda Item 11

mailto:sbewes@eastdevon.gov.uk


o Income-based Jobseeker’s Allowance.  

o Income-related Employment and Support Allowance.  

o Income Support.  

o Child Tax Credits.  

o Working Tax Credits.  

o Housing Benefit.  

  

2. The current position for East Devon 

  

2.1 We currently have 191 tenants claiming UC (full service) with a combined rent debt 

of £52,621.37.  As these tenants were not on full service UC in July 2018 we are 

able to check against their arrears at that time.  In this way we have established the 

combined debt outstanding was £16,819.65 on these same tenancies prior to the 

commencement of UC, so we know we have had an increase of  

£35,801.72 in the debt on these tenancies since UC was implemented, which 

represents an increase of over three times what was owed before their transition to 

UC. Of the 191 tenants currently claiming UC, 58 are in credit with their rent or have 

a zero balance, 19 have rent arrears of less than 2 weeks, 34 have rent arrears of 

between 2-4 weeks, 45 have rent arrears of between 4-8 weeks and 35 have rent 

arrears of more than 8 weeks. We are working with Housing Benefits to see if any of 

these arrears could be offset with Discretionary Housing Payment. 

 

 2.2 At your meeting a year ago on 11 January 2018 I reported that we had identified 
1,241 working age tenants on Housing Benefit (HB). Looking at the average debt 
of the tenants currently receiving UC we can forecast that another £316,642, on 
average, could be owed by the time all of these tenants are transitioned onto UC. 
Some recent changes to the timetable for rolling out the managed migration mean 
that nationally only 10,000 cases will be migrated across during the summer of 
2019 as part of the national pilot. Following this, it is likely that the managed 
migration will now not happen until 2020.  

2.3 In line with the standard process, UC is paid directly to the tenants with an 
expectation that they will then pay the proportion that covers their rent directly to 
us. Positively, due to our trusted landlord status we are able to request for the 
rental element of a tenants UC claim to be paid directly to us, this is a fairly 
straightforward process and to date we have done this for a proportion of the 
tenants effected. It is done through an assessment of an individual’s personal 
circumstances that takes into account the vulnerability of the tenant and their 
ability to pay their rent. 

 

3.        Our Concerns   

  

3.1 Some individuals may not be good at prioritising their bills or managing a budget 
and could easily get into debt. Where people get into debt there is greater reliance 
on resources locally such as food banks, charities, subsidies for electricity and 
gas, etc.  It also means a strain on our resources particularly within the Rental 
team, and can lead to an increase in arrears that are becoming harder to recover. 

 

3.2 The recent changes to the Pre Court Protocol mean that we as a landlord must not 
commence actions that we would usually have undertaken before service of 
possession proceedings while the tenant is in the process of transitioning to UC.  
The implication here for us as a social landlord is that we are not starting to look at 

Agenda page 76



Pre Court Preparations for 5-6 weeks, meaning arrears will be at a higher rate 
before we can look at recouping them through the Court process. 

 

3.3 Most people will apply online for UC and manage their claim through an online 
account that should be checked daily, as messages will be posted there from 
DWP, for example appointments to be kept or outcomes of requests.  We are 
discovering that customers are not logging into their accounts and actioning the 
instructions required by UC, which is holding up or stopping claims. Some 
customers are not accepting the ‘customer commitment’ within the required seven 
days which in this case means the claim being stopped altogether. Some 
customers are not inputting housing costs to their claim, as they have previously 
been on HB where it has been paid directly to the landlord, so they are not being 
paid the housing element to cover their rent. 

3.4 Where a joint tenant has left the property but never removed their name from the 
tenancy, only half of the UC claim can be paid.  This is particularly problematic as 
we as landlord are not able to remove the person who left the home from the 
tenancy without that person being involved in the process, and often they have 
moved on in their lives and do not wish to make contact. 

  

4 Our Response 

 

4.1 We are looking to set up a workshop within each area of the district to help tenants 
with budgeting and dealing with non-priority debts within their household, so that 
the UC transition is smoother and easier for the tenants.  We can help them come 
to understand that the process is very tenant led and that we as their landlord can 
no longer manage the process on their behalf.  We can impress upon tenants that 
daily checking for messages etc on their UC account is crucial if they want 
payments to keep coming through without interruption.  Our community 
development staff will be present at the workshops to help with digital skills and 
training, should they be required. 

 

4.2 The Rental Team are continuing to refer tenants with multiple debts to 
Homemaker Southwest so that they can receive independent advice from experts.  

 

4.3 This year all 45 front line Housing officers in Landlord Services, including those 
from Rental, Support, Community Development and Estate Management, have 
received UC training delivered by a DWP/Housing consultancy.  Over the next two 
months the rental officers and their manager are undertaking more advanced 
training alongside colleagues in the authority’s Benefits team. 

 

5 What’s new with the DWP 

 

5.1 HM Revenue and Customs have launched a new initiative called ‘Help to Save.’ 

This is an initiative that was trialled in January 2018 for Working Tax and UC 

Claimants. It will help those on a low income to put some money aside to budget 

for unexpected expenses. The initiative will run for four years with a bonus paid at 

years two and four. Eligibility is for anyone on Working Tax Credit, Child Tax 

Credit or UC with a minimum income equivalent to 16 hours at minimum living 

wage. The DWP serve only as a signposting agency to the initiative.   

 

Agenda page 77



5.2 Changes have been made to the live telephony opening hours from the 27th 

September 2018 - Opening hours were 8.00am to 6.00pm Monday to Friday, but 

have now changed to 9.00am to 4.00pm Monday to Friday, effectively reducing 

the times within which DWP staff are available to help resolve issues. 

 

5.3 From July 2020, entitlement to income related Income Support, Employment and 
Support Allowance and Job Seekers Allowance will continue for two weeks after a 
claim for UC has been made. This ensures that tenants will receive more support 
to make the transition from existing benefits to UC. 

 

5.4 From July 2020 there will be a 12 month exception period from Universal Credit’s 
minimum income floor for all gainfully self-employed customers new to UC or new 
to self-employment. (meaning they will not have to meet the normal UC thresholds 
for a while after their initial claim). 

  

5.5 The DWP will be funding Citizens Advice Bureaux (CAB) to provide Universal 
Credit Support from April 2019. The DWP are intending that the support scheme 
will help claimants through every step of their UC claim. They propose to offer 
people comprehensive and practical support they need to get their first payment 
on time and be ready to manage it when it arrives. The DWP feel that this will 
ensure a consistent and streamlined service for claimants across the country.  
From our point of view as the landlord, it should be noted that this work has been 
removed from the authority’s Benefits team, and the loss of an impartial, 
independent source of advice is likely to be sorely missed by tenants themselves.  
It is also not clear as yet whether the CAB will have someone present at the Job 
Centres who will help people with their claims, which is what EDDC staff have 
provided over the past 12 months.  We have yet to see how this will impact upon 
claimants. 

 

5.6 A new digital service for on line appeals has been put in place where the claimant 
can appeal to Her Majesty’s Court and Tribunal Service (HMCTS). The Submit 
Your Appeal (SYA) service allows customers to register their appeal against DWP 
benefit decisions online and track its progress in a step towards a fully digitised 
appeal service. It will also allow the claimant to submit evidence required to 
support the appeal. 

 

5.7 Vulnerable Customers are being highlighted so that they can be given intensive 
support through their Job Centre Plus and local authority. DWP envisage that the 
vulnerable customer network will ensure a quicker and smoother access to 
support, but we have yet to receive further details on how this will impact upon us 
or our customers. 

5.8 DWP have an update with their phone system whereby if the tenant calls from the 
phone number registered to their claim, this will automatically be picked up by the 
system and the tenant will be put through to the correct line for their case worker.  
This should make service more efficient and timely for our customers. 

 

5.9 The DWP will be employing “Positive People” to help over 25’s with digital support.  
Details of what this means in practise are not yet available. 

 

Agenda page 78



Report to: Housing Review Board 

 

Date of Meeting: 24 January 2019 

Public Document: Yes 

Exemption: None 

Review date for 
release 

None  

 

Agenda item: 12 

Subject: Bid to Local Government Association (LGA) for additional 
capacity funding. 

Purpose of report: For information.  

Recommendation: Members are asked to note the information in this report 

 

Reason for 
recommendation: 

To contribute towards some of the costs associated with working up 
potential development opportunities.  

Officer:   

Paul Lowe, Housing Enabling & Allocations Manager 
pjlowe@eastdevon.gov.uk  and Melissa Wall Housing Enabling Officer 
mwall@eastdevon.gov.uk   

Financial 
implications: 
 

Details are contained in the report. 

Legal implications: There are no legal implications on which to comment. 

Equalities impact: Low Impact 

. 

Risk: Low Risk 

 
 

Links to background 
information: 

 . 

Link to Council Plan: Living in this outstanding place 

 

1.0 Background 

 

1.1 An invitation to bid for funding from the Building Council Homes Programme was 
received from the Local Government Association (LGA) in December 2018. 

 

1.2 The LGA want to help promote, facilitate and enhance the role and capacity of 
councils to meet local housing need. The removal of the Housing Revenue Account 
(HRA) cap offers councils potential opportunities to build more homes. 

 

Agenda page 79

Agenda Item 12

mailto:pjlowe@eastdevon.gov.uk
mailto:mwall@eastdevon.gov.uk


1.3 The LGA have launched a new funding source - Building Council Homes Programme 
to provide some immediate support to some councils wanting to access skills to 
increase the delivery of homes via the HRA.  

 

1.4 The Programme will issue grants up to the value of £50,000. The LGA are able to 
support a minimum of six projects at this value, and potentially more depending on 
the demand. 

 

1.5 The LGA are keen to fund councils wanting to access skills to help deliver their 
ambitions for the HRA. This might include projects to: 

 
 

 Fully understand development potential 

 Innovate in the delivery of new homes 

 Explore and build partnerships to deliver new homes 

 Access particular skills necessary to deliver new homes 

 Achieve wider public service gains through delivering new homes.  

 

1.6 A bid has been submitted to the LGA for £50,000 (see Annex 1). 
 

2.0 The bid and our ambitions 
 

 
2.1 East Devon District Council have ambitions to re-ignite its council home build 

programme which has stalled. This welcomed opportunity to bid for additional 
funding support will help to mobilise both internal and external resources to fully 
explore the possibility of building council homes again. 
 

2.2 Our bid sets out our modest ambitions to explore conventional constructed homes as 
well as modular forms of housing development.  

 
2.3 As our bid mentions, there are a number of possible opportunities that we could 

explore further if our bid were approved. We therefore felt that we should go for the 
maximum amount on offer, namely £50,000. 

 
2.4 If our bid is successful, a further report will be presented to the Housing Review 

Board. It is likely that this report will seek additional funding support due to the level 
of grant available. This being low compared to the anticipated costs of exploring any 
development opportunities. 

 
2.5 Looking forward, if both the LGA bid and HRA funding are forthcoming it will help 

staff to gain skills and experience of working up a potential development, which 
could include modular builds. This is an exciting opportunity, and would be a first for 
the council. 

 
2.6 You will note from our bid, it also focuses on sharing experiences, learning new skills 

and expanding on the knowledge gained in anticipation of developing on a larger 
scale in the future.  

 
2.7 The following link is a recently published guidance document on modular housing. 

Our bid has captured our ambitions to develop in this area and we have found the 

Agenda page 80



attached paper useful in terms of addressing some of sector concerns around 
modular build housing.  

Link attached for Members information; 
https://www.trowers.com/uploads/Blogs/TH_Modular_Construction_-_Report.pdf 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    

 
 
 

 

 

Agenda page 81

https://www.trowers.com/uploads/Blogs/TH_Modular_Construction_-_Report.pdf


Agenda item 12 – annex 1 

 

 

Building Council Homes Programme – Bid for funding 

East Devon District Council 

Grant funding sought £50,000 

 

 

East Devon District Council have strong ambitions to re-ignite our council home build 

programme. This welcomed opportunity to bid for additional funding support will help to 

mobilise both internal and external resources to build our own council homes. The following 

bid sets out our modest ambitions to explore conventional constructed homes as well as 

modular forms of housing development.  

 

Background 

East Devon District Council is a rural authority that has retained its housing stock of around 

4250 homes. It’s bordered by Exeter, Mid Devon, South Somerset and West Dorset. A 

greater part of the District is designated as an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 

Our over-riding vision is to provide a decent home for all residents of East Devon.  

Our Housing Strategy sets out our vision to add 20 homes per year to our council stock. 

Since 2014/15 a programme of property acquisitions from the open market has been 

undertaken. This has been funded by a combination of Right to Buy receipts (RTB) and 

Housing Revenue funding. This has been an effective way of adding to the council’s housing 

stock and spending RTB receipts within the time constraints imposed. However, it does not 

represent good value for money or contribute towards building more homes. Our 

aspirations to build new homes has been curtailed by staffing capacity and a lack of specific 

in-house expertise, as well as funding constraints and the need to spend the RTB receipts 

quickly. 

The removal of the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) cap offers East Devon District Council 

an opportunity to build homes again, the last being built in 2011/12. 

Agenda page 82



 
 

The council’s last own build project involved securing Homes and Communities Agency 

funding of just over £1 million, which was match funded through the HRA. This enabled the 

delivery of a mix of eighteen flats and houses in four council owned locations within the 

district, all delivered within time and budget. 

Prefabricated / modular off site construction is something that the council hasn’t considered 

delivering in the past. However whilst looking into this possibility it has become clear that 

this type of construction has a number of advantages over more traditional forms of 

construction. From our initial research actual construction times are reduced, very low 

carbon footprints can be achieved, and homes can be more durable and built to a higher 

quality. 

Our Project; Redevelopment of garage sites  

It is hoped that securing grant funding of £50,000 will help to contribute towards our 

ambition of re-engaging our own council home build programme.  

The council has limited land available to build new homes. Positively, we have a number of 

redundant garage sites in areas of high housing need with redevelopment potential which 

we would like to pursue.  

A full evaluation of the councils garage stock was undertaken a number of years ago and this 

identified a number of potential sites that could be developed. Two of these are mentioned 

below. These sites have good access, are level and with mains services close by. We believe 

these sites offer great development potential. 

The location and nature of these garage sites, which are verging on derelict and are slightly 

isolated from the surrounding housing, do not create a good environment and have attract 

anti-social behaviour. We can change this and improve the surrounding neighbourhood, 

creating better spaces for all residents of the area.  

Developing homes in both of these locations which are well-known and within established 

communities will ensure we are providing homes where people want to live and where they 

can access all their social needs and employment opportunities. 

By creating high quality homes in areas where people want to live and feel connected to and 

secure will improve both physical and mental wellbeing. This impacts positively on 

communities by reducing the need for other public services such as a reliance on health care 

services. 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda page 83



 
 

Honiton Garage Redevelopment Projects 

Whitebridges garage site 

 

Jerrard Close garage site 

 

Whitebridges garage site                                   Jerrard Close garage site 

 

We have identified two specific sites in the town of Honiton. One site has been cleared and 

initial positive discussions with our Planning colleagues have taken place. We believe this 

Agenda page 84



 
 

represents a real opportunity to deliver a small development of modular homes as a test 

case. If successful, we could look to roll out similar projects across other small sites. The 

other site is larger and comprises of many garages which are vacant and in poor repair.   

The grant funding will enable us to appoint external professional consultants so that we can 

look at the feasibility of redeveloping these sites. The grant should enable us to take these 

sites forward and secure planning permission. It is envisaged that these two sites could 

deliver circa 15 homes.  We do not have the experience or staffing capacity to do this 

unaided and the grant would allow us to access the skills in the private sector. This would 

give officers the skills, experience and confidence to carry out more own build projects in 

the future.   

The council is very keen to explore different forms of construction, in particular modular 

builds.  

Housing need 

Both sites are located in Honiton, which has the second highest housing need in East Devon. 

Within East Devon we have 1,903 applicants in housing need. The need is primarily for 1 

bedroom homes with 57% of those on our waiting list requiring a 1 bedroom property. Any 

proposal would look to meet the identified need for smaller properties.  

With this proposed development we aim to be champions in promoting higher quality 

homes. We are becoming increasingly concerned that new build homes are getting smaller 

and we would like to address this with our own development and design, and building 

homes where people want to live and can live in years to come. We want to promote better 

design with a better sense of place and a home which will adapt to meet changing needs.     

East Devon District Council’s Contribution towards the Project 

Funding to enable the build will be sought from a combination of right to buy receipts, HRA 

reserves, commuted sums, capital receipts and additional borrowing. Within our Housing 

Revenue Account we currently have £2.0m of reserves earmarked for future housing 

development which is forecast to increase using future budgeted revenue surpluses.  In 

addition to this we are holding £1.4m within our capital receipts reserve and additional 

borrowing headroom of £7.2m. 

This combined funding would enable the council to start exploring our building ambitions 

again once the necessary skills and experience have been gained through these two sites.  

Timing 

Once preliminary site investigation works have been completed, and the necessary internal 

consents secured, a planning application would be submitted with a potential site starting in 

late 2019 -20.  

 

 

Agenda page 85



 
 

Outcomes and Ensuring Success from the Project 

The skills learnt whilst developing these smaller sites will be invaluable and focus our 

intentions on developing other land in the council’s ownership.  

Experiences would be shared within East Devon District Council and other Local Authorities 

via partners that include the Affordable Housing Delivery Forum of which all authorities in 

Devon are represented, and at Devon Rural Housing Partnership meetings. Experience 

would also be shared with our upcoming Community Land Trust projects. To date, we have 

four in the district. 

EDDC are a member of Advantage South West (ASW), a limited liability partnership owned 

by a number of Registered Providers. Through this we have access to established property 

designs and information sharing through a newly formed group (of which we intend to 

contribute towards) that will explore off site manufacturing, potentially offering savings via 

its established procurement consortium. ASW exists to improve homes and lives through 

collaboration and innovation. If we were successful in this bid, we see this as an ideal 

opportunity to share and indeed learn from a widely supported organisation in the region. 

All of the aforementioned are considered to provide a fantastic platform from which to 

share our experiences. 

Summary 

East Devon District Council, although only a small provider of new affordable homes have an 

important role to play in the provision of affordable housing and we are ambitious to make 

a difference to people’s lives and health by building high quality, suitable homes for those in 

need and in communities where people want to live.  

As a landlord we are high performing and proud of the homes and communities we own and 

help to shape. In recent years we have felt frustrated with the barriers to delivering Council 

built and owned homes. The restrictions on how to spend right to buy receipts have forced 

us to concentrate on quick wins rather than planning ahead for the long term and building 

the homes we need in areas where we need them. We see this grant as an opportunity to 

re-ignite our ambitions and an opportunity for added resource and expertise so that we can 

look to develop our own land and learn and gain valuable experience. We see these sites as 

an opportunity to improve and regenerate our existing communities and create high quality 

housing which is affordable and can provide for household’s needs both now and in the 

future so that our tenants feel secure and safe. We aspire to provide better designed and 

higher quality homes which we hope will inspire others to follow our lead and example. 

The grant funding would: 

 Enable the council to employ external expertise to fully explore and consider two 

council owned potential development sites. 

 Enable planning permission to be secured. 

 Attract match funding from the HRA to undertake the aforementioned works. 

 Look at alternative forms of construction.  

Agenda page 86


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	8 Housing Service Plan 2019-2020
	Item 08 Housing 2019-20 annex 1

	9 Housing budget 2019-2020 and Housing Revenue Account update
	Item 09 Estimates Book 2019-20 HRA annex 1

	10 Integrated Asset Management Contract update
	Item 10  IAMC Report Annex 1
	1 Executive Summary
	2 Workshop Report
	2.1 Introduction to the Day
	2.2 Participant Introductions
	2.3 Workshop Objectives
	2.4 Case Study and Previous Work
	2.5 Reshaping Asset Management
	2.6 Individual group work
	2.7 Review of key documents
	2.8 First draft of groups followed by brief group activity

	3 Risk identification and Objective Review
	Appendices
	Appendix A: Workshop Participants
	Appendix B: Workshop Feedback



	11 Universal Credit update
	12 LGA bid January 2019
	Item 12 Building Homes Annex 1


